ol

AGENDA
City of Lucas
City Council Meeting
January 3, 2019
7:00 PM
City Hall — Council Chambers
665 Country Club Road - Lucas, Texas

Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Lucas City Council will be held on Thursday, January 3, 2019 at 7:00 pm at Lucas City
Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002-7651 at which time the following agenda will be discussed. As authorized by
Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may convene into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking
confidential legal advice from the City Attorney on any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting.

Call to Order

Roll Call

Determination of Quorum

Reminder to turn off or silence cell phones
Pledge of Allegiance

Citizen Input

The Citizen Input portion of the agenda is an opportunity for the public to address the City Council on any subject. By completing a
“Request to Speak’ form and submitting to the City Secretary, citizens have an opportunity to speak at the City Council meeting.
However, in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, the City council cannot discuss issues raised or make any decisions but
may refer items to City Staff for research and possible inclusion on a future agenda.

1. Citizen Input (Mayor Olk)

Community Interest

Pursuant to Section 551.0415 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may report on the following items: 1) expression of thanks,
congratulations or condolences; 2) information about holiday schedules; 3) recognition of individuals; 4) reminders about upcoming
City Council events; 5) information about community events; and 6) announcements involving imminent threat to public health and
safety.

2. Items of Community Interest. (Mayor OIk)

Consent Agenda

All items listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and are recommended to the City Council for a single vote approval.
If discussion is desired, an item may be removed from the consent agenda for a separate vote.

3. Consent Agenda:

A. Approval of the minutes of the December 6, 2018 City Council meeting. (City Secretary
Stacy Henderson)



Regular Agenda

4.

Conduct interviews of Technology Committee applicants and consider appointments to the
Technology Committee. (Mayor OIKk)

Executive Session Agenda

As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may convene into closed Executive Session for the
purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the City Attorney regarding any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting.
Closed to the public as provided in the Texas Government Code.

5.

Pursuant to Texas Government Code, Section 551.074, Personnel Matters, the City Council
will convene into Executive Session to discuss appointments and reappointments to the Board
of Adjustment. (Mayor OIk)

Reconvene into Regular Session and take any action as a result of the Executive Session.
(Mayor OIKk)

Regular Agenda (Continued)

7.

10.

11.

12.

Consider and provide direction to the City Manager regarding roadway maintenance for
Brockdale Park Road, East Winningkoff Road, Forest Grove Road, Orr Road, Prado Verde

Drive, Snider Lane, and W. Lucas Road, during the 2019 asphalt season. (City Engineer Stanton
Foerster)

Consider and provide direction to the City Manager regarding future roadway reconstruction
projects as identified in the City’s Capital Improvement Plan and Thoroughfare Plan and
evaluate possible funding strategies. (City Engineer Stanton Foerster)

Consider authorizing the City Manager to apply for a grant with the Texas Department of
Transportation for the purpose of constructing approximately 5.3 miles of the City’s trail
network, referred to as the exercise loop, adjacent to Estates Parkway, West Lucas Road,
Allison Lane, and Country Club Road. (Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn)

Consider review of the City Charter and recommend any amendments to be considered in the
upcoming May 4, 2019 election. (City Secretary Stacy Henderson)

Consider the timeframe to be used for ballot language in the May 4, 2019 special election
related to the continuation of the Lucas Fire Control, Prevention, and EMS District, and sales

tax dedicated to the Lucas Fire Control, Prevention, and EMS District. (Finance Director Liz
Exum)

Adjournment.



Certification

I do hereby certify that the above notice was posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act on the bulletin board at Lucas
City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, TX 75002 and on the City’s website at www.lucastexas.us on or before 5:00 p.m. on
December 21, 2018.

Stacy Henderson, City Secretary

In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City of Lucas will provide for reasonable accommodations for persons
attending public meetings at City Hall. Requests for accommodations or interpretive services should be directed to Stacy Henderson at
972.912.1211 or by email at shenderson@Iucastexas.us at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.



City of Lucas ltem No. 01

City Council Agenda Request
MN January 3, 2019

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk

Agenda Item Request

Citizen Input

Background Information

NA

Attachments/Supporting Documentation

NA

Budget/Financial Impact

NA

Recommendation

NA

Motion

NA



Item No. 02

City of Lucas
Council Agenda Request
January 3, 2019

ki

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk

Agenda Item Request

2. Items of Community Interest.

Background Information

NA

Attachments/Supporting Documentation

NA

Budget/Financial Impact

NA

Recommendation

NA

Motion

NA



City of Lucas
Council Agenda Request
il January 3, 2019

Requester:  City Secretary Stacy Henderson

Agenda Item Request

Item No. 3

3. Consent Agenda:

A. Approval of the minutes of the December 6, 2018 City Council meeting.

Background Information

NA

Attachments/Supporting Documentation

1. Minutes of the December 6, 2018 City Council meeting.

Budget/Financial Impact

NA

Recommendation

City Staff recommends approval of the Consent Agenda.

Motion

I make a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.



City of Lucas
M‘M City Council Meeting
December 6, 2018
7:00 P.M.
City Hall - 665 Country Club Road — Lucas Texas

MINUTES

Call to Order

Mayor Olk called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

City Councilmembers Present: Staff Present:

Mayor Jim Olk City Manager Joni Clarke
Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele City Attorney Joe Gorfida
Councilmember Wayne Millsap City Secretary Stacy Henderson
Councilmember Tim Baney City Engineer Stanton Foerster
Councilmember Steve Duke Fire Chief Ted Stephens

Councilmember Debbie Fisher

City Councilmember Absent:
Councilmember Philip Lawrence

Mayor Olk determined that a quorum was present. Everyone was reminded to silence their cell
phones and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

Citizen Input

1.  Citizen Input.

There was no one requesting to speak during the Citizen Input portion of the agenda.

Community Interest

2. Community Interest.

Mayor Olk presented a Proclamation to Good Shepherd United Methodist Church celebrating their
125" anniversary. Mayor Olk also presented a Proclamation honoring life saving efforts to the
Frazier family of Lucas, members of the City of Wylie Public Safety Communications Division, and
Lucas Fire-Rescue personnel.

Mayor Olk stated that the City would be holding an open house on February 19, 2019 celebrating
the City’s 60" anniversary. Mayor Olk also noted that outdoor festivities associated with Country
Christmas to be held on December 7 had been cancelled, but Santa’s Workshop would take place in
the Council Chambers. He also noted that art from Lovejoy ISD students would be on display at

l1|Page City Council
December 6, 2018



City Hall beginning January 31, and lastly, candidate filing for the May 2019 election begins January
16 through February 15.

Consent Agenda

3. Consent Agenda.
A.  Approval of the minutes of the November 15, 2018 City Council meeting.

B.  Approval of the City of Lucas Investment Report for quarter ending September 30,
2018.

C.  Consider approving Resolution R 2018-12-00478 designating the Allen American as
the official newspaper of the City of Lucas.

MOTION: A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Peele, seconded by Councilmember Duke to
approve the Consent Agenda as presented. The motion passed unanimously by a 6 to

0 vote.
Regular Agenda
4. Provide update regarding the installation of a left turn lane along Parker Road into
the Kirkland Estates neighborhood during the construction and widening of Parker
Road.

City Engineer Stanton Foerster stated that there had been no further updates form TxDO'T since
the last presentation at the November 15 City Council meeting. Mr. Foerster stated that he was still
waiting for final cost estimates.

5. Consider reappointments to the Parks and Open Space Board, Board of Adjustment
and Planning and Zoning Commission, and consider appointments to the
Technology Committee and to fill the vacant position on the Parks and Open Space
Board.

Mayor Olk began discussions with the Board of Adjustment reappointments.

Mayor Pro Tem Peele requested to postpone Board of Adjustment reappointments until the January
3, 2019 City Council meeting to discuss during Executive Session.

MOTION: A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Peele, seconded by Councilmember Duke to
postpone reappointments of the Board of Adjustment to the January 3, 2019 City
Council meeting and place an Executive Session item on the agenda for discussion
and consideration purposes. The motion passed unanimously by a 6 to 0 vote.

Mayor Olk discussed the Planning and Zoning Commission reappointments noting that four
members were up for reappointment. Mayor Olk stated that he had spoken with the Planning and
Zoning Chairman who had no concerns regarding the current reappointments.

2|Page City Council
December 6, 2018



MOTION: A motion was made by Mayor Olk, seconded by Councilmember Millsap to
reappointment Andre Guillemaud, Joe Williams, Alternate Member Tim Johnson
and Alternate Member Tommy Tolson to the Planning and Zoning Commission for
a two year term expiring December 31, 2020. The motion passed unanimously by a 6
to 0 vote.

Mayor Olk deferred to Parks Board liaison Councilmember Baney for discussion regarding member
reappointments and appointment to a vacant alternate member position that was available.

Councilmember Baney stated that he would like to reappoint Tommy DeWitt, Chris Vanhorn and
David Rhoads for another two year term. He stated that he would also like to appoint Christel
Parish to the vacant alternate member position on the Parks Board. Councilmember Baney stated
that she was a 30-year resident of Lucas and would be a good addition to the Parks Board.

MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Baney, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Peele
to reappoint Tommy DeWitt, Chris Vanhorn and David Rhoads to the Parks and
Open Space Board for a two year term expiring December 31, 2020; and to appoint
Christel Parish to the vacant alternate member position on the Parks and Open
Space Board for a two year term expiring December 31, 2020. The motion passed
unanimously by a 6 to 0 vote.

Mayor Olk began discussions regarding appointments to the Technology Committee. He stated that
the City received fourteen very qualified applicants for five available spots. Mayor Olk noted that the
committee would consist of a City staff member, I'T consultant Bill Baxter, and Council liaison
Councilmember Fisher.

Councilmember Fisher noted that in reviewing applications, she would like to have applicants
chosen from different geographical areas of the City in order to provide the best representation.
Councilmember Fisher noted that there were several applications received that represented the same
geographical area, and recommended the following individuals be considered for the Technology
Committee:

e Mark Skaggs

e Paul Rathgeb

e William Sleeper
e George Brody
e Dennis Skully

Councilmember Fisher encouraged any applicant that may not be appointed to participate in the
meetings and stay informed.

Councilmember Millsap suggested that a criteria be created outlining the selection process of
applicants for this new committee. Councilmember Millsap stated the Council should also consider
interviewing applicants at the January 3 City Council meeting as has been done for other boards and
commissions during the appointment process to gain further insight.

Mayor Olk directed staff to contact the five potential applicants to schedule interviews for the
January 3, 2019 City Council meeting.

3|Page City Council
December 6, 2018



6. Consider adopting Ordinance 2018-12-00887 amending Chapter 3, Building
Regulations, Article 3.17 Right-of-Way use by amending Sections 3.17.017, 3.17.018
and 3.17.019 providing regulations consistent with Federal Law related to the
installation of network nodes in public right-of-way by network providers; and
amending Appendix C, Fee Schedule amending the fees applicable to the installation
of network nodes and required equipment in City right-of-way.

City Engineer Stanton Foerster stated that this item was prepared by the City Attorney’s office, with
the intent was to have regulations in place for the installation of network nodes in the City’s right-
of-way before the new law goes into effect January 1, 2019.

City Attorney Joe Gorfida explained that the City had previously adopted fees associated with the
installation of network nodes in public right-of-way, and the ordinance proposed adopts regulations
regarding installation of network nodes according to State law.

Councilmember Fisher asked that the language in Section 3.17.019(b) be amended to state the City
Manager’s designee.

Councilmember Millsap noted on Page 1, Appendix C table the statement “Small cell application fee
(this penalty shall not exceed and is capped by statutory limits). The word penalty should be
changed to fee in both areas of the table. Councilmember Millsap also asked if the installation of
network nodes in the City’s right-of-way would affect any of the City’s franchise agreements.

City Attorney Joe Gorfida stated the installation of network nodes would not affect the City’s
franchise agreements.

MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Fisher, seconded by Councilmember Millsap
to approve Ordinance 2018-12-00887 amending Chapter 3, Building Regulations,
Article 3.17 Right-of-Way use by amending Sections 3.17.017, 3.17.018 and 3.17.019
providing regulations consistent with Federal Law related to the installation of
network nodes in public right-of-way by network providers; and amending Appendix
C, Fee Schedule amending the fees applicable to the installation of network nodes
and required equipment in City right-of-way, and include amendments to the
language relating to the City Manager’s designee in Section 3.17.019(b) and changing
the word penalty to fees in the Appendix C table. The motion passed unanimously
by a 6 to 0 vote.

7. Discuss the creation of a City of Lucas Communication Policy to clarify the process
of how the City responds to external inquiries.

Councilmember Millsap suggested that a communication policy be put in place that outlines how the
City Council and City staff respond to written inquiries from residents. Councilmember Millsap
stated that currently there was not a clear understanding of who responds to an inquiry when the
entire City Council is included in the correspondence. Councilmember Millsap further explained
that having a communication policy would provide for consistency in response and ensuring the
appropriate message was being conveyed.

4|Page City Council
December 6, 2018



The City Council discussed with the City Manager how they have responded to correspondence.
Mayor Olk noted that he would be in favor of inquiring with other cities and researching the
communication policies they have in place.

City Manager Joni Clarke stated that she would create an outline regarding external communication
and bring back to Council for further guidance and consideration.

The City Council was in agreement and directed the City Manager to bring back an outline for a
communication policy for Council review.

Executive Session Agenda

8. Executive Session.
An Executive Session was not held at this meeting.
9. Adjournment.

MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Millsap, seconded by Mayor Olk to adjourn
the meeting at 7:54 pm. The motion passed unanimously by a 6 to 0 vote.

APPROVED: ATTEST:
Jim Olk, Mayor Stacy Henderson, City Secretary
5|Page City Council

December 6, 2018



Item No. 04

City of Lucas
Council Agenda Request
January 3, 2019

ki

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk

Agenda Item Request

Conduct interviews of Technology Committee applicants and consider appointments to the
Technology Committee.

Background Information

At the December 6, 2018 City Council meeting, the Council suggested five applicants they
would like to speak further with regarding their desire to serve on the Technology Committee.
City staff was asked to contact the five applicants to attend the January 3, 2019 City Council
meeting to talk with the City Council. Those five applicants included:

Dennis Scully
George Brody
William Sleeper
Paul Rathgeb
Mark Skaggs

City staff reached out to each applicant and Mr. Sleeper will not be able to attend due to work

obligations, and Mr. Scully is attempting to rearrange his schedule so that he can be in
attendance. All other applicants will be in attendance to meet with the City Council.

Attachments/Supporting Documentation

1. Applications (sent under separate attachment)

Budget/Financial Impact

NA

Recommendation

NA

Motion

NA



City of Lucas ltem No. 05

Council Agenda Request
January 3, 2019

ol

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk

Agenda Item Request

Executive Session.
A. Pursuant to Texas Government Code, Section 551.074, Personnel Matters, the City

Council will convene into Executive Session to discuss appointments and reappointments
to the Board of Adjustment.

Background Information

NA

Attachments/Supporting Documentation

NA

Budget/Financial Impact

NA

Recommendation

NA

Motion

NA



City of Lucas ltem No. 06

Council Agenda Request
January 3, 2019

ol

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk

Agenda Item Request

Reconvene into Regular Session and take any action as a result of the Executive Session.

Background Information

NA

Attachments/Supporting Documentation

NA

Budget/Financial Impact

NA

Recommendation

NA

Motion

NA



City of Lucas Item No. 07

City Council Agenda Request
MN January 3, 2019

Requester: City Engineer Stanton Foerster

Agenda Item Request

Consider and provide direction to the City Manager regarding roadway maintenance for
Brockdale Park Road, East Winningkoff Road, Forest Grove Road, Orr Road, Prado Verde
Drive, Snider Lane, and W. Lucas Road, during the 2019 asphalt season.

Background Information

Brockdale Park Road — Staff has received a concern from a Lucas citizen regarding the section of
Brockdale Park Road that is east of Lakeshore Boulevard. Staff is seeking a temporary repair
sometime in January by milling up the existing pavement and adding base until asphalt can be
placed in the Spring.

E. Winningkoff Road — Staff is seeking a temporary fix sometime in January by milling up the
existing pavement and adding base at various locations along East Winningkoff Road. The
developer of Logan Ford Ranch will be responsible for reconstruction of East Winningkoff from
Welborn Lane to the east when 75% of the permits are issued.

Forest Grove Road — This will be the detour route when Blondy Jhune Road is closed for
reconstruction. The maintenance area includes approximately 300 feet of Forest Grove Road
from Orr Road to the west.

Orr Road — This will be the detour route when Blondy Jhune is closed for reconstruction. The
maintenance area includes approximately 400 feet of Orr Road from Forest Grove Road to the
south.

Prado Verde Drive Hammerhead — This work was approved by the City Council as part of the
FY 16-17. The work was not completed to due to a lack of an easement.

Snider Lane — Various locations need maintenance and staff will be filling potholes until
development of Lakeview Downs is substantially complete and then it may be scheduled for
more extensive maintenance.

West Lucas Road - Significant deterioration in front of Willow Springs Middle School. The
geotechnical coring of the pavement has been completed, and we expect the report by January 2,
2019. Maintenance will occur from Country Club Road to the west side of Willow Springs
Middle School.



City of Lucas Item No. 07

City Council Agenda Request
MN January 3, 2019

Attachments/Supporting Documentation

NA

Budget/Financial Impact

Costs will be provided under separate cover once the TexasBit/Dallas County contract is
finalized.

Recommendation

City Engineer Stanton Foerster recommends the following in priority order:

1.

West Lucas Road — reconstruct the 1300 feet of the center portion of the roadway per design
engineer’s recommendations in the areas of significant deterioration in front of Willow
Springs Middle School.

Orr Road - reconstruct the 400+/- feet south of Forest Grove Road in anticipation of the
detour route for the Blondy Jhune Road reconstruction.

Forest Grove Road — reconstruct the 300+/- feet. This will be the detour route when Blondy
Jhune Road is closed for reconstruction. The maintenance area includes approximately 300
feet of Forest Grove Road from Orr Road to the west.

East Winningkoff Road — reconstruct from Shady Lane to Logan Ford Ranch Phase 3 once
funds are available from the developer. Until then maintain gravel and perform minor
maintenance.

Brockdale Park Road — maintain gravel and perform minor maintenance unless Hillwood
decides to expand their work along Brockdale Park Road between Lakeshore Blvd. and the
cul-de-sac at the trailhead gate.

Prado Verde Drive Hammerhead — design and construct hammerhead once easement is
obtained.

Snider Lane — minor maintenance only until development of Lakeview Downs is
substantially complete and then it may be scheduled for more extensive maintenance.



City of Lucas Item No. 07

City Council Agenda Request
MN January 3, 2019

Motion

I make a motion to direct the City Manager to provide roadway maintenance for Brockdale Park
Road, East Winningkoff Road, Forest Grove Road, Orr Road, Prado Verde Drive, Snider Lane,
and W. Lucas Road, during the 2019 asphalt season as recommend above by the

City Engineer.



City of Lucas ltem No. 08

City Council Agenda Request
MN January 3, 2019

Requester: City Engineer Stanton Foerster

Agenda Item Request

Consider and provide direction to the City Manager regarding future roadway reconstruction
projects as identified in the City’s Capital Improvement Plan and Thoroughfare Plan and
evaluate possible funding strategies.

Background Information

In November 2018, the City Council adopted the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). Within this
document is a tentative outline of projects by fiscal year:

FY 16-17

e Winningkoff Road Reverse Curve — Completed

e Stinson Road/West Lucas Road Intersection — Completed
e West Lucas Road Widening — Completed

FY 17-18

e Country Club Road/Estates Parkway Intersection (funded) — This project is being
incorporated into a TXDOT project schedule to start construction on May 2019.

e Winningkoff Road Middle Section from the Reverse Curve to Snider Lane (funded) —
Scheduled for construction after the Blondy Jhune Road Roadway project is complete.

FY 18-19

e Stinson Road southern section from Parker Road to Bristol Park (funded) — The anticipated
start of construction is Spring 2019.

e Blondy Jhune Road Reconstruction from western bridge to Winningkoff Road (funded) —
Depending on funding, this project might be extended west to the Hendrix Farm property.
The anticipated start of construction is Spring 2019.

FY 19-20
Stinson Road northern section from Bentwater Drive to the Reverse Curve (not funded,
estimated cost $2,000,000) — No work has started on this project.

FY 20-21
Winningkoff Road southern section from East Lucas Road to the Reverse Curve (not funded,
estimated cost $1,900,000) — No work has started on this project.

The Capital Improvement Plan identifies priority roadways for reconstruction. This document
will be evaluated and updated annually to reflect changing conditions and funding availability.



City of Lucas ltem No. 08

City Council Agenda Request
MN January 3, 2019

The following projects are not currently listed in the Capital Improvement Plan but are identified
in the City’s 2017 Master Thoroughfare Plan. Staff is seeking direction from the City Council
on whether we should consider adding the following street projects to the Capital Improvement
Plan and begin prioritizing them for funding, design and construction:

Blondy Jhune Road within the Hendrix Farm property (developer funded).

East Winningkoff Road from Orr Road to Logan Ford Ranch Phase 3.

Forest Grove Road from Country Club Road to Orr Road.

Orr Road from East Winningkoff Road to existing Forest Grove Road.

Snider Lane eastern section from Shady Lane to 300 feet north of East Lucas Road.
Snider Lane western section and bridge from Winningkoff Road to Shade Lane.
Stinson Road/Edgewood Drive section from the Reverse Curve to West Lucas Road.
Stinson Road middle section and bridge from Bristol Park to Bentwater Drive.

West Lucas Road (four-lane) from Angel Parkway to Country Club Road.
Winningkoff Road northern section from Snider Lane to Orr Road.

Attachments/Supporting Documentation

1. Financial Advisor Mark McLiney’s Schedule using arbitrary $7,000,000 debt issuance
and a modified schedule with a more conservative approach.
2. City of Lucas 2017 Master Thoroughfare Plan

Budget/Financial Impact

Staff contacted the Senior Managing Director of SAMCO Capital Markets Mark McLiney to
evaluate the potential debt capacity and associated impact to the tax rate using a subjective
$7,000,000 should the City Council direct staff to move forward with additional capital projects.

Recommendation

City Engineer Stanton Foerster recommends the funding of the design and construction
following in priority order:

Stinson Road northern section from Bentwater Drive to the Reverse Curve.
Winningkoff Road southern section from East Lucas Road to the Reverse Curve.
Snider Lane western section and bridge from Winningkoff Road to Shady Lane.
Stinson Road middle section and bridge from Bristol Park to Bentwater Drive.

West Lucas Road (four-lane) from Angel Parkway to Country Club Road.

Stinson Road/Edgewood Drive section from the Reverse Curve to West Lucas Road.
Blondy Jhune Road within the Hendrix Farm property (developer funded).
Winningkoff Road northern section from Snider Lane to Orr Road.

NN E



City of Lucas ltem No. 08
City Council Agenda Request
MM January 3, 2019

9. Snider Lane eastern section from Shade Lane to East Lucas Road.

10. Forest Grove Road from Country Club Road to Orr Road.

11. East Winningkoff Road from Orr Road to Logan Ford Ranch Phase 3.
12. Orr Road from East Winningkoff Road to existing Forest Grove Road.

Motion

I make a motion to direct the City Manager to regarding future roadway
reconstruction projects as identified in the City’s Capital Improvement Plan and 2017 Master
Thoroughfare Plan and evaluate possible funding strategies for City Council consideration.




Current 2018 Tax Rate

Mark McLiney's Schedule

City of Lucas, Texas
Tax Rate Impact Study
November 15, 2018

Historical Valuations

M&O 0.2023 66.72% Tax Year Fiscal Year Taxable Less: Net Growth
1&S 0.1009 33.28% Ending 9/30 Values Freeze Values Taxable Values Rate
Total [ 03032 | 100.00% 2011 2012 $567,043,409 -$49,461,013 $517,582,396
2012 2013 $589,607,007 -$52,474,732 $537,132,275 3.78%
2013 2014 $663,672,428 -$60,443,626 $603,228,802 12.31%
Taxable Value Growth Rate (2018-2041) 2014 2015 $768,920,713 -$71,869,895 $697,050,818 15.55%
2019 8% 2015 2016 $870,966,798 -$84,703,362 $786,263,436 12.80%
2020 5% 2016 2017 $992,456,203 -$98,447,135 $894,009,068 13.70%
2021 5% 2017 2018 $1,123,948,354 -$117,223,614 $1,006,724,740 12.61%
2022 2% 2018 2019 $1,308,714,124 -$141,865,378 $1,166,848,746 15.91%
2023-2041 0% |Average Growth Rate 12.38%
2018 Freeze Value Revenue $355,688
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Fiscal Year Projected Net Current 1&S Less: Net $7,000,000 Total 1&S
Ending 9/30 Taxable Values Debt Service Freeze Value Tax | Debt Service ‘ Debt Service Tax Rate
2019 $1,166,848,746 1,171,588 $118,367 $1,053,220 $1,053,220 $0.0903
2020 $1,260,196,646 1,169,991 $118,367 $1,051,623 $341,250 $1,392,873 $0.1105
2021 $1,323,206,478 1,162,068 $118,367 $1,043,700 $412,750 $1,456,450 $0.1101
2022 $1,389,366,802 1,168,244 $118,367 $1,049,876 $486,450 $1,536,326 $0.1106
2023 $1,417,154,138 922,575 $118,367 $804,208 $566,325 $1,370,533 $0.0967
2024 $1,417,154,138 919,825 $118,367 $801,458 $563,950 $1,365,408 $0.0963
2025 $1,417,154,138 915,925 $118,367 $797,558 $566,013 $1,363,570 $0.0962
2026 $1,417,154,138 911,350 $118,367 $792,983 $567,400 $1,360,383 $0.0960
2027 $1,417,154,138 911,025 $118,367 $792,658 $563,225 $1,355,883 $0.0957
2028 $1,417,154,138 811,975 $118,367 $693,608 $563,488 $1,257,095 $0.0887
2029 $1,417,154,138 809,275 $118,367 $690,908 $567,963 $1,258,870 $0.0888
2030 $1,417,154,138 810,800 $118,367 $692,433 $566,650 $1,259,083 $0.0888
2031 $1,417,154,138 648,950 $118,367 $530,583 $564,663 $1,095,245 $0.0773
2032 $1,417,154,138 389,100 $118,367 $270,733 $566,388 $837,620 $0.0591
2033 $1,417,154,138 389,050 $118,367 $270,683 $563,325 $834,008 $0.0589
2034 $1,417,154,138 388,700 $118,367 $270,333 $563,975 $834,308 $0.0589
2035 $1,417,154,138 388,050 $118,367 $269,683 $563,725 $833,408 $0.0588
2036 $1,417,154,138 387,100 $118,367 $268,733 $567,463 $836,195 $0.0590
2037 $1,417,154,138 390,775 $118,367 $272,408 $565,188 $837,595 $0.0591
2038 $1,417,154,138 - $118,367 -$118,367 $566,900 $448,533 $0.0317
2039 $1,417,154,138 - $118,367 -$118,367 $567,488 $449,120 $0.0317
Total $14,666,364 $10,855,075 $23,035,729

Series 2019 CO's interest rate calculated at 4.50%. Current interest rate would be close to 4.00%.




Modified Schedule

City of Lucas, Texas

Tax Rate Impact Study Recalculated

November 15, 2018
Current 2018 Tax Rate Historical Valuations
M&O 0.2023 66.72% Tax Year Fiscal Year Taxable Less: Net Growth
1&S 0.1009 33.28% Ending 9/30 Values Freeze Values Taxable Values Rate
Total ] 0.3032 | 100.00% 2011 2012 $567,043,409 -$49,461,013 $517,582,396
2012 2013 $589,607,007 -$52,474,732 $537,132,275 3.78%
2013 2014 $663,672,428 -$60,443,626 $603,228,802 12.31%
Taxable Value Growth Rate (2018-2041) 2014 2015 $768,920,713 -$71,869,895 $697,050,818 15.55%
2019 5% 2015 2016 $870,966,798 -$84,703,362 $786,263,436 12.80%
2020 5% 2016 2017 $992,456,203 -$98,447,135 $894,009,068 13.70%
2021 5% 2017 2018 $1,123,948,354 -$117,223,614 $1,006,724,740 12.61%
2022 2% 2018 2019 $1,304,135,146 -$141,865,378 $1,162,269,768 15.45%
2023-2041 0% |Average Growth Rate 12.31%
2018 Freeze Value Revenue $355,688
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Fiscal Year Projected Net Current 1&S Less: Net $7,000,000 Total 1&S
Ending 9/30 Taxable Values Debt Service Freeze Value Tax | Debt Service ___ Debt Service Tax Rate
2019 $1,162,269,768 1,171,588 $1,171,588 $1,171,588 $0.1008
2020 $1,220,383,256 1,169,991 $1,169,991 $341,250 $1,511,241 $0.1238
2021 $1,281,402,419 1,162,068 $1,162,068 $412,750 $1,574,818 $0.1229
2022 $1,345,472,540 1,168,244 $1,168,244 $486,450 $1,654,694 $0.1230
2023 $1,372,381,991 922,575 $922,575 $566,325 $1,488,900 $0.1085
2024 $1,372,381,991 919,825 $919,825 $563,950 $1,483,775 $0.1081
2025 $1,372,381,991 915,925 $915,925 $566,013 $1,481,938 $0.1080
2026 $1,372,381,991 911,350 $911,350 $567,400 $1,478,750 $0.1078
2027 $1,372,381,991 911,025 $911,025 $563,225 $1,474,250 $0.1074
2028 $1,372,381,991 811,975 $811,975 $563,488 $1,375,463 $0.1002
2029 $1,372,381,991 809,275 $809,275 $567,963 $1,377,238 $0.1004
2030 $1,372,381,991 810,800 $810,800 $566,650 $1,377,450 $0.1004
2031 $1,372,381,991 648,950 $648,950 $564,663 $1,213,613 $0.0884
2032 $1,372,381,991 389,100 $389,100 $566,888 $955,988 $0.0697
2033 $1,372,381,991 389,050 $389,050 $563,325 $952,375 $0.0694
2034 $1,372,381,991 388,700 $388,700 $563,975 $952,675 $0.0694
2035 $1,372,381,991 388,050 $388,050 $563,725 $951,775 $0.0694
2036 $1,372,381,991 387,100 $387,100 $567,463 $954,563 $0.0696
2037 $1,372,381,991 390,775 $390,775 $565,188 $955,963 $0.0697
2038 $1,372,381,991 - $0 $566,900 $566,900 $0.0413
2039 $1,372,381,991 - $0 $567,488 $567,488 $0.0414
Total $14,666,364 $10,855,075 $25,521,439

Series 2019 CO's interest rate calculated at 4.50%. Current interest rate would be close to 4.00%.




- 2017 Master Thoroughfare Plan _

AN o = :
oy S 9 i
9 . Brook = por
= 8 g Ut 2, FOREST GROVE RD - C & t
- e I 0’
- :----l-:l-O
¥ O
0
L W
MAIN ST - A -I:I ESTATES PKWY - B : Q g
=mEE = 3 e o g 5
E | % 5
i v 2 % 0] Risis
z 3' § § ChristiBh in ‘
Il é E § j § ELUCASRD-B
4 E g : = ,
BETHANY RD - A * = 8 *
Rhy = - LTl o _
*F  wwcasrp-B 9‘ '*v : '
i : % -
' 2 8 ‘
il : - g r N
Ell.-ssug" E Z n g,
% . e @
gll e 4 ~ § % .
,E.III‘ ....* g E ;
n : 2
1 : HIGHLAND DR - C g@ »
i . A ;
PARKERRD - A = =1
- e . “ - s - .. - | -’
===z c-=== = —— -
| HE i\
Legend
Solid lines are thoroughfares within the city.
Dashed lines are thoroughfares outside the city.
Blue lines are proposed thoroughfares.
Blue stars are proposed intersection improvements locations.
Thoroughfare name is followed by thoroughfare type.
Right-of-
Thoroughfare No. of Divided Pavement Width Way or
Type Lanes Roadway (Feet) Easement
Width (Feet)
S W — . 78
A -— - Six Yes Plus a 16-Foot Median 120
B Four No 52 to 54 60
C EEEEEEREN
Neighborhood Two No 24 to 28 50
Connector
D (Not Shown) Two No 24 50

2/13/2017




City of Lucas ltem No. 09

Council Agenda Request
il January 3, 2019

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn

Agenda Item Request

Consider authorizing the City Manager to apply for a grant with the Texas Department of
Transportation for the purpose of constructing approximately 5.3 miles of the City’s trail
network, referred to as the exercise loop, adjacent to Estates Parkway, West Lucas Road, Allison
Lane, and Country Club Road.

Background Information

The Texas Department of Transportation (TXxDOT) has announced an upcoming call for projects
for bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure. Two sources of funding will be included:
Transportation Alternatives (TA) and Safe Routes to Schools (SRTS).

Who can apply?
» Texas communities of all sizes may apply for TXDOT’s SRTS-Infrastructure funds to
construct bikeway and pedestrian projects located within two miles of K-8 schools
* Texas communities of 200,000 or less are also eligible to apply for TXDOT’s TA funds

What types of projects are eligible?
» Sidewalks, bikeways, shared use paths, traffic calming measures, and other safety
improvements for non-motorized travel

When are applications due?
» TxDOT’s Call for Projects will open in February 2019
* The 2019 TA/SRTS Call for Projects will have a two-step process:
Preliminary Project Applications will be due in April 2019
Detailed Project Applications will be due in August 2019
» Project sponsors must complete both application steps to compete for funding

Attachments/Supporting Documentation

1. TxDOT Grant application program guide summary
2. Trails Master Plan
3. Exercise Loop Map

Budget/Financial Impact

The options below are based on cost estimates from previous projects. There have been no
estimates for this project to date. The costs below do not include design or engineering.



City of Lucas ltem No. 09

Council Agenda Request
il January 3, 2019

Option 1:

Twelve-foot wide concrete trail times 28,000 lineal feet equals 336,000 square feet. 336,000
square feet times $6.50 per square foot equals $2,184,000. This is an estimate based on other
project costs. The project would also need drainage, grading, easement acquisition, and approach
replacement. An estimate of those portions of the project cost approximately $900,000. Total
cost is estimated to be approximately $3,084,000.

Option 2:

Remove Allison Lane from the project and have the trail system utilize the sidewalk provided by
commercial projects adjacent to Angel Parkway. Eight-foot wide times 22,000 linear feet equals
176,000 square feet times $6.50 per square foot equals $1,144,000 plus $900,000 for drainage,
grading, easement acquisition. The estimated cost is $2,044,000.

Option 3:
Use trail pattern from Option 2 but replace concrete with crushed gravel, within edged border to
hold in place with weed prevention material in the base. The cost has not yet been determined.

Recommendation

City staff recommends applying for the Texas Department of Transportation grant for the
purpose of funding the portion of the City’s trail network referred to as the exercise loop.

Motion

I make a motion to approve/deny authorizing the City Manager to apply for a grant with the
Texas Department of Transportation for the purpose of constructing approximately 5.3 miles of
the City’s trail network, referred to as the exercise loop, adjacent to Estates Parkway, West Lucas
Road, Allison Lane, and Country Club Road.



A. SUMMARY OF PROJECT OPPORTUNITY

On January 27, 2017, the Texas Department of Transportation (department or TxDOT) announced a
statewide Call for Projects under the Transportation Alternatives Set-Aside (TA Set-Aside) Program
for population areas of 200,000 or less. This program guide outlines the nomination, evaluation,
and selection processes, including step-by-step instructions for completing the project nomination
form and providing appropriate attachments. Important dates to remember include:

e January 27, 2017 - Call for Projects opens

s February - March 2017 - Workshops (refer to L. 2017 TA Set-Aside Workshop Schedule)
e May 22, 2017 - Project nominations due to the department

e May - August 2017 - Project screening and evaluation

o Fall 2017 - Project selection by the Texas Transportation Commission

The TA Set-Aside Program, as administered by the department, provides funding to construct a
variety of alternative transportation projects that improve mobility for non-motorized users and
mitigate congestion by providing transportation options. Eligible project activities include
construction of on- and off-road pedestrian and bicycle accommodations (including conversions of
abandoned railroads), infrastructure for non-drivers, access to public transportation, and Safe
Routes to School infrastructure.

The department is particularly interested in those projects that reflect a high degree of
collaboration and community consensus while directly contributing to the department’s safety,
mobility, and connectivity goals. Project sponsors are strongly encouraged to submit projects that:

e Enhance bicycle and pedestrian safety for people of all ages and abilities

e Improve safety, access, or mobility for individuals with disabilities

o Construct on-system improvements in support of TXDOT’s ADA/Pedestrian initiatives

e Provide access to or between existing bicycle and pedestrian facilities, public transportation, or
other mobility options

e Connect important community destinations (such as schools, employment,
downtown/commercial/historic districts, medical facilities, and recreational areas)

e Contribute to the development of a statewide or regional bicycle route for tourism

e Contribute, as an independent element, to a larger public project/investment

Proposed projects may be located on state-maintained roadway right-of-way (on-system) or on
property owned by the project sponsor (off-system).

The department intends to make available TA Set-Aside Program funds associated with anticipated
FY 2017 - FY 2020 appropriations. Assuming current FAST Act authorization levels, approximately
$52 million is estimated for population areas under 200,000. All, or some portion of this amount,
may be awarded as a result of this Call, depending on the actual amount of funding available and
the eligible number of TA Set-Aside project nominations received by the department.



B. PROGRAM OVERVIEW

The Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act establishes the TA Set-Aside Program as
part of the Surface Transportation Block Grant and replaces the Transportation Alternatives
Program (TAP) which was established as an independent funding category under the Moving Ahead
for Progress in the 21st Century Act (MAP-21). Like TAP, the TA Set-Aside Program provides funding
for a variety of alternative transportation projects. The program is contained in 23 U. S. C. §133(h).

The federally funded TA Set-Aside Program provides opportunities to expand transportation choices
and enhance transportation infrastructure. Each state department of transportation reviews the
guidance provided by the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) and develops rules to administer
their TA Set-Aside Program according to that state’s priorities. In Texas, the department’s statewide
TA Set-Aside Program for population areas of 200,000 or less operates under rules adopted by the
Texas Transportation Commission (commission), which may be found in 43 Texas Administrative
Code (TAC) §§11.400 - 11.418 and §8§16.153 - 16.154. TA Set-Aside projects submitted to the
department must relate to the surface transportation system and be eligible under one or more of
the six activities outlined in topic C. Eligible Project Activities of this guide.

Federal TA Set-Aside funds administered by the department are for construction activities only. The
department’s 2017 TA Set-Aside Call for Projects is limited to eligible project sponsors and projects
from nonurban areas with populations of 5,000 or less and small urban areas with populations of
5,001 to 200,000 that are outside the smoothed 2010 U. S. Census Urbanized Area boundary of a
Transportation Management Area.

Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPOs) with population areas greater than 200,000 are
designated as Transportation Management Areas (TMAs). Potential project sponsors within the TMA
must seek TA Set-Aside funding through their local MPO.

Note: In Texas, TA Set-Aside funds for the Recreational Trails Program are administered through the
Texas Parks and Wildlife Department.

This is the first TA Set-Aside Call for Projects by the department. For information on the
department’s new TA Set-Aside rules, the new TA Set-Aside 2017 Nomination Form, and other
program details, visit:
http://www.txdot.gov/inside-txdot/division/public-transportation/bicycle-pedestrian.html. The

TA Set-Aside project nomination package must present persuasive evidence of support from the
communities in which the project would be implemented. The project sponsor must commit to
provide a local funding match of at least 20% of the allowable construction and department
oversight costs, subject to any allowable adjustment for authorized in-kind contributions and/or an
adjustment for an eligible project located in an economically disadvantaged county. Any costs
incurred prior to selection and authorization from the department to proceed will not be eligible for
consideration as an in-kind contribution or otherwise part of a local funding match. The local
funding match must be a cash match or combination of cash and in-kind contribution provided by
or through the project sponsor. The commission will specify a fixed amount of TA Set-Aside funds




for each project. Project costs in excess of this amount are the responsibility of the project sponsor.
The project sponsor may seek additional funds in a subsequent program call.

Projects funded under 23. U.S.C. 133, including TA Set-Aside projects, shall be treated as projects
on a federal-aid highway (23 U.S.C. 133(i)). This subjects all TA Set-Aside projects to various
federal-aid requirements (e.g., Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, Buy America, planning,
environmental review, procurement and letting, etc.). Specific guidance regarding program/project
requirements is found in the TXDOT Local Government Projects Toolkit (LGP Toolkit) found at
http://txdot.gov/government/processes-procedures/Igp-toolkit.ntml. The LGP Toolkit provides
specific information regarding the applicable laws (see Policy Manual), procedures (see Project
Management Guide), and best practices (see Best Practices Workbook) that must be adhered to for
some or all phases of a TA Set-Aside project. Relevant portions of the LGP Toolkit are referenced in
this Guide.

C. ELIGIBLE PROJECT ACTIVITIES

The eligible TA Set-Aside activities identified in TXDOT’s rules (refer to 43 TAC §11.404(a)) are
taken verbatim from the Federal Highway Administration’s TA Set-Aside Guidance. For TxDOT'’s
2017 TA Set-Aside Call for Projects for population areas of 200,000 or less, the eligible
construction activities have been abbreviated for clarity as follows:

1. On-road bicycle improvements

2. Off-road shared use paths

3. Infrastructure improvements on an abandoned railroad corridor to facilitate non-motorized
transportation

4. Sidewalks

5. Infrastructure improvements to provide safer routes to school

6. Infrastructure-related projects to improve safety for non-motorized transportation

Note: Review topic |. Economically Disadvantaged Counties Program for potential local match relief
for eligible projects.

D. ELIGIBLE TA SET-ASIDE PROJECT SPONSORS
Under 23 U.S.C. 133(h)(4)(B), the entities eligible to receive TA Set-Aside funds are:

1. Local government: Any unit of local government below a State government agency, except
for an MPO. Examples include city, town, township, village, or county agencies.

2. Aregional transportation authority: Regional transportation authorities are considered the
same as the Regional Transportation Planning Organizations defined in the statewide
planning section (23 U.S.C. 135(m)).



3. Atransit agency: Any agency responsible for public transportation that is eligible for funds
as determined by the Federal Transit Administration.

4. A natural resource or public land agency: Any Federal, Tribal, State, or local agency
responsible for natural resources or public land administration. Examples include:

State or local park or forest agencies

e State or local fish and game or wildlife agencies

e Department of the Interior Land Management Agencies

e U.S. Forest Service

5. Aschool district, a local education agency, or school: Includes any public or nonprofit
private school. Projects should benefit the general public and not only a private entity.

6. Tribal Government

A nonprofit entity responsible for the administration of local transportation safety programs

- Examples include a nonprofit entity responsible for:

e alocal program implementing construction, planning, and design of
infrastructure-related projects and systems that will provide safe routes for
non-drivers, including children, older adults, and individuals with disabilities to
access daily needs

e asafe routes to school program

N

8. Any other local or regional governmental entity with responsibility for, or oversight of,
transportation or recreational trails (other than an MPO or a state agency) that the
department determines to be eligible, consistent with the goals of the TA Set-Aside
Program.

Per 23 U.S.C. 133(h)(4)(B) state departments of transportation (DOTs) and metropolitan planning
organizations (MPOs) are not eligible project sponsors for TA Set-Aside funds. However, state DOTs
and MPOs may partner with an eligible entity to carry out a project.

Nonprofit organizations are not eligible as direct grant subrecipients for TA Set-Aside funds unless
they qualify through one of the eligible entity categories (e.g., where a nonprofit organization is a
designated transit agency, school, or entity responsible for the administration of local
transportation safety programs). Nonprofit entities are eligible to partner with any eligible entity on
an eligible project; however, the eligible entity would serve as the project sponsor and be 100%
responsible for the local match and project development. Only one entity is permitted to serve as a
project sponsor. The project sponsor may need to provide the department a reference to review
their enabling legislation.

Typically the local government serves as the project sponsor because the majority of improvements
are located within property maintained by the local government. When a second party such as a
school district or nonprofit entity agrees to provide a portion of the local funding match, it would be
the local government/project sponsor’s responsibility to execute an agreement with the second




party for any funding commitments and secure any right-of-entry for project construction while
remaining the sole project sponsor.

E. PROJECT EVALUATION AND SELECTION CRITERIA

Through collaboration and leadership, TxDOT’s mission is to deliver a safe, reliable, and integrated
transportation system that enables the movement of people and goods. Selection criteria for
TxDOT’s TA Set-Aside program are influenced by the department’s vision to be a forward-thinking
leader delivering mobility, enabling economic opportunity, and enhancing quality of life for all
Texans. The department seeks to prioritize TA Set-Aside investments in projects that best meet the
department’s vision and mission and represent the best use of available TA Set-Aside funds.
Tables 1, 2, and 3 on the following pages outline the criteria categories that will be used to
evaluate all eligible projects. The tables include a brief description, evaluation factors, and
identification within the nomination form where each criterion should/could be addressed. All
project sponsors should address the ten criteria categories in response to the information
requested in the project nomination form. The criteria categories are as follows:

o Safety

¢ Mobility & Congestion Mitigation
e Regional Connectivity

¢ Accessibility

e Environmental Benefits

o Economic Development

e Project Readiness

e Local Funding

e Planning

e Public Support

Evaluation Process

Department staff will review, evaluate, and recommend projects submitted during the department’s
2017 TA Set-Aside Program Call for Projects. A committee will be formed to screen each proposed
project to determine whether it is eligible for funding under applicable federal and state law and
determine whether the proposed project meets technical standards established by applicable law
and acceptable professional practice. The committee will also evaluate the potential benefit to the
state of the project for all eligible projects, based on the specific evaluation criteria.

An Eligibility Evaluation of all projects will be the first step. The committee will verify the eligibility of
the project sponsor, the proposed construction activity, and the project location. If the project
sponsor, construction activity, or location is determined to be ineligible, then the project will not be
considered for funding. If a project is determined to be ineligible, the department will notify the
project sponsor immediately.



Each eligible project will be scored using criteria based on the department’s goals as outlined in
Tables 1, 2, and 3. Criteria category scores will be weighted and applied uniformly to eligible
projects.

Although there is not a minimum or maximum amount of funding available for a single project, the
total program funds are limited. As a result, the department may find it necessary to contact a
project sponsor to split a larger project into smaller segments to be constructed in phases.

A nomination package that fails to include items required as part of the project nomination package
will be considered incomplete and will not be considered for funding. See “Required attachments”
under topic W. Project Nomination Checklist. If certain project nomination information is unclear,
the department may request supplemental information as needed to conduct project screening and
evaluation. A list of the required attachments is included with the nomination checklist; Refer to
topic W. Project Nomination Checklist to complete the checklist.

Note: Completing the Project Nomination Checklist is recommended not required; however, the
project sponsor may include the checklist as part of the project nomination package.

Label as: Nomination Checklist-Attachment N - No more than 10 pages.

The evaluation committee will provide project selection recommendations and supporting
documentation to the director of the division responsible for administering the TA Set-Aside
Program. The director of the responsible division will review the recommendations and supporting
documentation and provide a final list of recommended projects to the commission for
consideration.

Selection Criteria

The ten criteria categories have been organized into three focus areas expressed in Table 1:
Department Goals and Project Emphasis Areas, Table 2: Project Readiness, and Table 3: Local
Funding and Support. Each project nomination package must include credible documentation
demonstrating how the proposed project meets the selection criteria.

Each project is unique and may fulfill some but not all of the selection criteria categories. It is the
project sponsor’s responsibility to demonstrate how the proposed project benefits their community
and/or the state. To assist both the project sponsor and the reviewer, the three tables include a
column entitled Topics in Nomination Form to suggest how the project sponsor might address a
specific criterion. The proposed project may produce benefits other than those discussed within the
three tables. It is the project sponsor’s responsibility to demonstrate additional benefits based on
the criteria categories and descriptions. Support statements with facts. Some recommended
resources include excerpts from reports, news articles, crash reports, planning documents, relevant
data, research, maps, photographs, diagrams, surveys, etc.



E STACY Rf)

’;OREST OO

GROV

Estirer. \% %
\ e

2 ?
37, X

\ﬁ ¢
2N 3

‘! £ 3

o N
REATMENT PLANT 3:‘?*""") LAVON

0 SNIDER LN

M% . N
MAIN & ‘ /?«
: { /) e
‘n Y
§
| o
~ ""“i.__ ETJ \ D \
JF'. —
= G =5 / < N
E S S £ s
i 17 R R ey i LAKE
ii's- d; “E%‘ Z j = s LAVON
N
NS - X . »( ETJ o, L
T 2 i R T P
= a
L N
W i
_3{5 ] a 1
— CREEK LINE 3 Y 514 o
Yo KE |

FM 1378

COUNTRY CLUBRD
-
PN
el

\)\%‘ {

\

CITY OF LUCAS

TRAILS MASTER PLAN




-

- Dlam{}nd © Rﬂﬂch
- Horse Boardmg

r
R

s Y Q| 9 AIWINO D FEEEEEE

b
qn|3’AIuUnoy =

-

7/

)
r

\_JDE \" Hanu
Elememam Sch, ‘Dl

P Elﬂpi-ﬂ

e

.&EME-IJEd 1abuy LInos-

|O AIIUNO S

Kelly'é Family" & L

. Farm Burgern.Stand :
L.ﬁa E.m SEADIEE A RNk apg A S
E'Bethany’ ny_g_r.—’ wiLuCas Rd W Lucaska ¥ W|Lucas/Rdg=s X - ; . L LUCEI‘% R e

L Sk e 28 :

-

i

-a‘tw:mjw SPrlngs

rMiddle SChOcﬂ
el r'




City of Lucas ltem No. 10

City Council Agenda Request
MN January 3, 2019

Requester:  City Secretary Stacy Henderson
City Manager Joni Clarke

Agenda Item Request

Consider review of the City Charter and recommend any amendments to be considered in the
upcoming May 4, 2019 election.

Background Information

Section 12.03 of the City’s Home Rule Charter requires that the City Council review the charter
at least once every five years to determine whether any amendments are necessary.

The City’s Charter was last reviewed in May of 2013 and there were no recommended
amendments at that time.

City staff is required to have all ballot language to the Collin County Elections office by
March 5, 20109.

Attachments/Supporting Documentation

1. Home Rule Charter

Budget/Financial Impact

NA

Recommendation

NA

Motion

A. I make a motion to propose the following amendments to the Home Rule Charter:

B. I make a motion to bring this item back to the , 2019 City Council meeting for

further review and consideration.

C. I make a motion to propose no amendments during this review.



[TJAnnexation

| "iLUL%'MMM“" "M‘/MUM 03:33:47 P R 1/38 i

[Clother

ORDINANCE # 2008-05-00612

[Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter]

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS,
DECLARING THE RESULTS OF THE SPECIAL ELECTION OF
THE CITY COUNCIL HELD ON MAY 10, 2008 FOR THE
PROPOSED HOME RULE CITY CHARTER; DECLARING THE
HOME RULE CHARTER VOTED ON BY THE VOTERS OF THE
CITY OF LUCAS AT AN ELECTION ON MAY 10, 2008,
ADOPTED AND APPROVED FOR THE CITY OF LUCAS,
TEXAS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas, adopted Resolution
No. 2008-02-0031 ordering that an election be held in the City of Lucas, Texas on May
10, 2008 for the purpose of adopting the Home Rule Charter of the City of Lucas, Texas
and caused notice of said election to be given in the manner and for the time provided by
law; and

WHEREAS, a majority of the votes cast at said election were for the adoption of
the Home Rule Charter of the City of Lucas, Texas; and

WHEREAS, the returns of said election have been duly and legally made and

submitted to the City Council for canvassing, and a tabulation of the returns for the
polling place and for early voting, as canvassed and tabulated by the City Council;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. That after examining said returns and opening and canvassing the
votes of said election that the results of said election are as follows:

Proposition Number 1

Shall the Home Rule Charter of the City of Lucas be adopted?

EARLY VOTES ELECTION DAY TOTAL VOTES

CAST VOTES CAST CAST
"FOR" 189 233 422
"AGAINST" 50 58 108

City of Lucas. Texas
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvassing of Election for Home Rule Charter
Approved May 15, 2008



SECTION 2. Said election was duly called, that notice of said election was given
in accordance with law, and that said election was held in accordance with law, and that
Proposition 1 was approved by a majority of the votes cast at said election for the
adoption of the Home Rule Charter.

SECTION 3. That the Home Rule Charter, approved and adopted by the votes of
the City of Lucas at an election held for that purpose on May 10, 2008 a copy of which is
attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof for all purposes, is hereby declared
to be the Home Rule Charter of the City of Lucas, to take effect immediately from and
after the passage of this ordinance.

SECTION 4. That the City Secretary shall record in the office of the City
Secretary, the Home Rule Charter adopted by the voters of the City; and pursuant to
§ 9.007, Tex. Loc. Gov’t Code Ann., the Mayor shall certify to the Secretary of State of
the State of Texas an authenticated copy of this ordinance and said Home Rule Charter,
under the seal of the City, showing the approval by the qualified voters of the City of
Lucas, Texas.

SECTION 5. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its
passage as the law and charter in such case provide.

DULY PASSED by the City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas, on the 15™ day

of May, 2008.
APPROVED:
\\\““mt'““ Um ",,
SN Nz ﬁ_L’
Ok =41 BILLCARMICKLE, MAYOR
: {SEAL "¢
3o i § CORRECTLY ENROLLED:
Illll"’lu * \\\\\\\‘\\\ ﬂ< ( / LO ’ ?L)
Mannn E v/‘ﬂ i//{ M C
KATHY WINGO, TR@
CITY SECRETARY
APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Leoh .

JOE GORFIDA, Ji{’., CITY ATTORNEY

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvassing of Election for Home Rule Charter
Approved May 15, 2008



EXHIBIT A
HOME RULE CHARTER

Home Rule
Charter

City of Lucas, Texas

An election on the adoption of this Home Rule Charter was held on
Saturday, May 10, 2008
at the Lucas City Annex
185 Country Club Road, Lucas, TX 75002
972-727-8999 (p), 972-727-0091 (f), http://www.lucastexas.us

Ordinance # 2008-05-00612

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter

Approved May 15, 2008



\ Home Rule Charter for the City of Lucas, Texas, May 2008.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PREAMBLE

ARTICLE 1 Form of Government and Boundaries.
SECTION 1.01 Form of Government

SECTION 1.02 Boundaries

SECTION 1.03 Extension and Alteration of Boundaries

ARTICLEII  Powers of the City

SECTION 2.01 Powers of the City

SECTION 2.02 Legislative Authority

SECTION 2.03 Municipal Court
SECTION 2.04 Enumerated Governmental Powers

SECTION 2.05 Health Regulations

ARTICLE III  City Council

SECTION 3.01 Governing Body

SECTION 3.02 Elected Officers

SECTION 3.03 Candidacy of the Mayor and Councilmembers
SECTION 3.04 Election

SECTION 3.05 Judge of Election

SECTION 3.06 Date and Conduct of Election

SECTION 3.07 Qualifying of Officers

SECTION 3.08 Candidates Holding Special Positions with the City

OV CeRXXIT N QAEWDNDN N N -

SECTION 3.09 City Council Vacancies and Attendance
SECTION 3.10 Mayor Pro-Tem

SECTION 3.11 Compensation for the Mayor and Councilmembers

SECTION 3.12 Duties of Mayor

SECTION 3.13 Duties of City Council
SECTION 3.14 Meetings of City Council

SECTION 3.15 Quorum of City Council and Minutes of City Council Meetings
SECTION 3.16 Ordinances and Resolutions

SECTION 3.17 Official Newspaper

SECTION 3.18 Influence of Appointments....

SECTION 3.19 Public Comment

SECTION 3.20 Code of Ethics

ARTICLE IV  City Manager

SECTION 4.01 Appointment
SECTION 4.02 Compensation

SECTION 4.03 Duties

SECTION 4.04 Absence of City Manager
SECTION 4.05 Removal

ARTICLE V  City Officers

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter
Approved May 15, 2008



Home Rule Charter for the City of Lucas, Texas, May 2008.

SECTION 5.01 City Secretary 16
SECTION 5.02 Municipal Judge 17
SECTION 5.03 City Attorney 17
SECTION 5.04 Official Bond of City Employees 18
ARTICLE VI Financial 18
SECTION 6.01 Audit and Examination of City Books and Accounts 18
SECTION 6.02 Budget 18
SECTION 6.03 Taxes and Taxation 19
SECTION 6.04 Designation of Depository for City Funds 20
ARTICLE VII Bonds, Warrants and Other Evidence of Indebtedness 20
SECTION 7.01 Authority to Issue 20

- SECTION 7.02 Manner of Issuance 20
ARTICLE VIII Recall 20
SECTION 8.01 Procedure 20
ARTICLE IX Legislation by Initiative and Referendum 23
SECTION 9.01 Initiative 23
SECTION 9.02 Referendum 24
SECTION 9.03 Voluntary Submission of Legislation by the City Council.....c.cccoecee. 24
SECTION 9.04 Form of Ballots 24
SECTION 9.05 Publication of Proposed or Referred Ordinances 25
SECTION 9.06 Adoption of Ordinances 24
SECTION 9.07 Inconsistant Ordinances 24
SECTION 9.08 Ordinances Passed by Popular Vote, Repeal, or Amendment .......... 24
SECTION 9.09 Further Regulations by the City Council 24
SECTION 9.10 Franchise Ordinances 24
ARTICLE X Franchises 26
SECTION 10.01 Ordinance Granting Franchise 26
SECTION 10.02 Right of Regulation 26
SECTION 10.03 Regulation of Rates 27
SECTION 10.04 Transfer of Franchise 27
SECTION 10.05 Franchise Value Not to be Allowed 27
ARTICLE XI  Legal Provisions 28
SECTION 11.01 Notice of Claim 28
SECTION 11.02 Service of Process Against the City 28
SECTION 11.03 Nepotism 28
SECTION 11.04 Construction of Terms 28
SECTION 11.05 Charter Deemed Public Act 28
SECTION 11.06 Severability of Portions of Charter 28
ARTICLE XII Adoption of Charter 29

City of Lucas, Texas

Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter

Approved May 15, 2008



Home Rule Charter for the City of Lucas, Texas, May 2008.

SECTION 12.01 Procedure

SECTION 12.02 Amendment of Charter

29
29

SECTION 12.03 Charter Review Commission

29

Appendix "A" RECALL PETITION

30

Appendix "B" BALLOT

31

Appendix "C" SIGNATURES

32

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter
Approved May 15, 2008



HOME RULE CHARTER
FOR
THE CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS

PREAMBLE

We, the citizens of Lucas, Texas, in order to establish a Home Rule municipal government,
provide for the progress of our City, secure fully the benefits of local self-government, promote
economic and cultural prosperity, provide for the common welfare, insure health and safety,
support municipal cooperation, and encourage all citizens to participate in the process of self-
governing, hereby adopt this Home Rule Charter, as an expression of our city's purpose and in
accordance with the statutes of the State of Texas; and we declare the City of Lucas (hereinafter
referred to as “City”), in Collin County, to be a political subdivision of the State of Texas with
all powers, rights, privileges, authorities, duties and immunities of local self-government as are
provided and limited in this Charter.

ARTICLE 1
Form of Government and Boundaries

SECTION 1.01 Form of Government

(H The municipal government provided by this Charter shall be known as the “Council -
Manager” form of government. Pursuant to its provisions and subject only to the
limitations imposed by the Constitution of the United States, the Texas Constitution, the
statutes of the State of Texas, and this Charter, all powers of the City of Lucas shall be
vested in an elected City Council which shall enact local legislation, adopt budgets,
determine policies, and provide for the adoption and execution of the laws of the City as
provided in this Charter.

(2) The City Council shall appoint a City Manager who shall be responsible to the City
Council for the management and administration of the offices of the City, except as
otherwise provided by this Charter.

SECTION 1.02 Boundaries

The boundaries of the City of Lucas shall be the same as have been heretofore established and
now exist as recorded on the official City map as provided by this Charter. The citizens of the
City of Lucas residing within its corporate limits, as heretofore or hereafter established, are
hereby constituted and shall continue to be a municipal body politic and corporate, in perpetuity,
under the name of the "City of Lucas", in the State of Texas, hereinafter referred to as the
“State”, with such powers, privileges, rights, duties, authorities, and immunities, as are herein
provided.

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter
Approved May 15, 2008

1



SECTION 1.03 Extension and Alteration of Boundaries

(1)

)

3)

The boundaries of the City of Lucas may be enlarged and extended by the annexation of
additional territory or decreased by disannexation in any manner and by any procedure
now or hereafter provided by law. The City shall, hereafter, by ordinance, amend the
official map of the boundaries to include such properties so annexed or disannexed.

Upon completion of the annexation procedure, the annexed territory shall become a part
of the City, and said land and its residents shall be entitled to all the rights and privileges
provided by the City for its citizens and shall be bound by the acts, ordinances,
resolutions and regulations of the City.

If, after the date of annexation, there exists land within and adjacent to the corporate
limits of the City of Lucas not receiving governmental or proprietary services of the city
within the time required by the service plan or Chapter 43 of Texas Local Government
Code, or its successor statute, then a majority of the qualified voters residing within this
particular area may petition the city council to disannex the area as provided in Chapter
43 of Texas Local Government Code, or its successor statute.

ARTICLE 11

Powers of the City

SECTION 2.01 Powers of the City

(H

(2)

The City is made a body politic and corporate by the legal adoption of this Charter. The
City shall have all the powers vested in home rule municipal corporations except as may
be limited by the Constitution of the United States, the Texas Constitution, and the
statutes of the State.

The enumeration of particular powers by the Charter shall not be held or deemed to be
exclusive, but, in addition to the powers enumerated therein or implied thereby, or
appropriate to exercise of such powers, it is intended that the City shall have, and may
exercise all powers except as limited by this Charter. All powers of the City, whether
expressed or implied, shall be exercised as prescribed by this Charter or, if not prescribed
therein, then as provided by ordinance or resolution of the City Council.

SECTION 2.02  Legislative Authority

The City by and through its City Council shall have the power to enact and enforce all
ordinances and resolutions necessary to protect health, life and property; and to prevent and
summarily abate and remove all nuisances; and preserve and enforce good government and order
and security of the City and its inhabitants; and to enact and enforce all ordinances and
resolutions on any and all subjects which shall be consistent with the provisions of this Charter.

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter
Approved May 15, 2008

2



SECTION 2.03 Municipal Court

(1)

(2)

(3)

C))

(5)

(6)

Establishment -- The City shall have the power to create and establish a municipal court to
be known as the Municipal Court of the City of Lucas, Texas. The Municipal Court shall
have jurisdiction of all criminal cases arising under the ordinances of the City and
concurrent jurisdiction with the Justice of the Peace of the precinct of which the City is or
may be situated of all criminal cases arising under State law, where such offenses are
committed either within the territorial limits of the City or in an area lying outside the
corporate limits of the City in which area the City is authorized to exercise its police
powers as set forth but not necessarily limited to the areas provided by State law and where
the punishment is by fine only and the maximum of said fine does not exceed the
maximum fine authorized to be imposed by municipal courts under State law or any
amendments thereto. The Municipal Court shall have all the powers and duties as are now,

~ or as may be prescribed by the laws of the State of Texas.

Additional Courts -- The City shall have the power to create and establish additional
municipal courts, and to appoint one or more judges of each municipal court, whether one
or more, each of whom shall be a magistrate and each judge of a municipal court, now
existing or hereinafter created, shall be appointed by the City Council, for a term of 2 years;
and the City shall have the power to create and establish additional courts as may from time
to time be authorized by the legislature of the State.

Rules -- All complaints, prosecutions, the service of process, commitment of those
convicted of offenses, the collection and payment of fines, the attendance and service of
witnesses and juries, punishment for contempt, bail and the taking of bonds shall be
governed by the provisions of the rules established by the Supreme Court of Texas
applicable to municipal courts.

Appeals -- Appeals from convictions in the Municipal Court shall lie to the county criminal
court, and such appeals shall be governed by the same rules of practice and procedure as
are provided by State law in cases of appeals from the justice court to said county criminal
court, as far as said rules are applicable.

Clerk -- The Clerk of Municipal Court and such deputies as shall be appointed by the City
Manager, shall have the power to administer oaths and affidavits, make certificates, affix
the seal of the Municipal Court thereto; and generally do and perform any and all acts usual
and necessary by clerks of courts in issuing processes of courts and conducting the business
thereof.

Expense and Fines -- All special expense and fines imposed by the Municipal Court(s)
shall be paid into the City general fund for the use and benefit of the City, as may be
consistent with present and future laws.

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter
Approved May 15, 2008

3



SECTION 2.04 Enumerated Governmental Powers

(1

(2)

3)

“)

(5)

Real Estate -- The City has full authority as a home rule municipal corporation and as-
such it has authority to acquire and own real estate in fee simple title, or held by lease,
sufferance, easement or otherwise, all public buildings and improvements, and structure
or whatever type and character, and any and all property, whether real or personal, of
whatever kind, character or description now owned or controlled by the City shall vest in,
inure to, remain and be the property of said City under this Charter. In the event that the
City shall grant a lease for any real property in excess of twenty (20) years, the City
Council shall hold a public hearing.

Public Rights-Of-Way -- The City shall have the power to lay out, establish, open, alter,
widen, lower, extend, grade, construct, abandon and improve streets, alleys, sidewalks,
squares, parks, public places, bridges and public thoroughfares or rights-of-way; and to
otherwise regulate and control the use thereof for any and all public purposes all
obstructions, telegraph, telephone or other poles, carrying electric wires or signs, and all
showcases and encroachments of every nature and character upon any said street, right-
of-way and sidewalk and to vacate and close public ways; and the City shall have the
power to make any improvements as provided by State law.

Regulation of Vehicles -- The City Council shall have the power by ordinance or
otherwise to license and control the operation of any vehicle using public streets or
rights-of-way.

Regulation of Public Utilities -- The City shall have the power to buy, own, sell,
construct, lease, maintain, operate and regulate public services and utilities; and to
manufacture, distribute and sell the output of such services and utility operations. The
City shall not supply any utilities service outside the City limits, except by written
contract. The City shall have such regulatory and other powers as may or hereafter be
granted under State law; and, by ordinance, to determine, fix and regulate the charges,
fares or rates of compensation to be charged by any person, firm or corporation enjoying
a franchise for utilities in the City. :

Operation of Public Services or Utilities by City -- The City shall have the power to
build, construct, purchase, own, lease, maintain and operate, inside or outside the City
limits, light and power systems, water systems, sanitary wastewater disposal, natural gas,
parks, drainage, municipal solid waste disposal and any other public service or utility in
this section, as deemed in the public interest. The City shall not enter into an agreement
for the construction, purchase, lease or operation of a sanitary wastewater disposal system
until after two separate public hearings being held on two separate dates with such
approval requiring five (5) affirmative votes of the City Council prior to the May 2009
election. Effective after the May 2009 election and thereafter, an affirmative vote by five
(5) members of the City Council shall be required for such approval. Such notice for said
public hearings shall state with specificity the type of sanitary wastewater disposal
system (ex: sanitary wastewater disposal system) and the proposed location (common
address) of the proposed sanitary wastewater disposal system.

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter
Approved May 15, 2008

4



(6)

0

(8)

€)

(10)

(1)

(12)

(13)

(14)

Purchase Utility Services - The City shall have the power to purchase electricity, gas, oil
or any other article or service essential to protect the health, safety and welfare of its
inhabitants on such terms as the City Council may deem proper.

Transportation Facilities -- The City may acquire, maintain, operate and regulate any and
all modes of transportation facilities or services; and, use public funds for such purposes,
and issue such debt or funds as permitted by this Charter.

Parks and Recreation -- The City may acquire, maintain, operate and regulate within its
exclusive control all City parks and recreation facilities whether inside or outside the City
limits.

Undergeround Utilities -- The City may require the placing under the surface of the ground
all wires or any above ground construction of any public utilities inside the limits of the
City under such regulation as may be prescribed by the City Council from time to time.

Fire Prevention -- The City shall provide by ordinance for the establishment and
designation of fire limits and prescribe the kind and character of buildings or structures or
improvements to be erected therein; provide for the erection of fire resistant buildings
within certain limits; and provide for the condemnation of dangerous structures of
buildings or dilapidated buildings or buildings calculated to increase the fire hazard, and
the manner of their removal or destruction.

Public Safety -- The City has the power and may by ordinance establish and maintain a
police and fire department(s) by whatever name known and to prescribe the duties of the
members of each such department(s) and regulate their conduct and their salary ranges.
The head of the police department of the City shall be known and designated as "Chief of
Police", and the head of the fire department of the City shall be known and designated as
"Fire Chief". The City Council shall provide by ordinance staff requirements for each
such department.

Contracts -- The City shall have the power to enter into contracts for goods and services.
Such authority is subject to the limitation regarding competitive bidding as provided by
State law or as may otherwise be limited by this Charter. The City hereby adopts the
requirements and exceptions concerning the provisions of State law regarding goods and
acquisition.

Land Use - The City shall have full power and authority to zone and regulate the
subdivision of land in the City and to pass all necessary ordinances, rules and regulations
governing the same under and by virtue of the authority given to cities and legislative
bodies in accordance with State law. The City will maintain an official city map
describing the official city limits as required by State law.

Franchises -- The City shall have full power and authority to franchise as provided by this
Charter.

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter
Approved May 15, 2008

5



(15)  Occupations -- The City shall have the authority to license or register such occupations or
business as may be established by ordinance, except as may be in conflict with State law.

SECTION 2.05 Health Regulations

(1) Regulations -- The City shall have the power to provide for the health, safety and welfare
of its inhabitants by establishing all necessary rules and regulations protecting the health,
safety and welfare of the City.

(A) The City Council shall have the power by ordinance or otherwise to regulate,
license and inspect public or private persons, firms, institutions, corporations,
common carriers, or associations operating, managing, or conducting any
activities including, but not limited to, any of the following:

1. place of public accommodation, hotel or any other public sleeping or
eating place;

2. place or vehicle where food or drink of any kind is manufactured,
prepared, stored, packed, served, sold or otherwise handled within the City
or limits of said City;

any and all health conditions; and

4. sanitary wastewater disposal systems.

(B)  The City shall have the power to define all nuisances and prohibit the same within
the City and outside the City limits for a distance in accordance with State law; to
have power to police in all parks or grounds, street right-of-way owned by the
City or under lease to the City and lying both outside and inside said City; to
prohibit the pollution of air or waterways, walkways of any kind, water deposit
and reservoir, whether above or below the ground, which may constitute the
source of storage of water supply, and to provide for policing the same, as well as
to provide for the protection of any watersheds and the policing of the same.

(2) Penalties or Fines -- The City shall have the power to provide for the fixing of penalties
for failure of any person, firm, corporation or association to comply with any such rules
and regulations so prescribed by the City Council under the provisions of this section; it
being the intention to vest in the City Council not only the powers expressly enumerated
in this section but all other powers reasonably necessary for the protection of the health
of the City and its citizens. '

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter
Approved May 15, 2008

6



ARTICLE III

City Council

SECTION 3.01  Governing Body

The governing body of the City shall be known as the “City Council” and shall consist of a
Mayor and six (6) Councilmembers.

SECTION 3.02 Elected Officers

ey

2

(3)

4

)

Members -- The members of the City Council of the City, which include the Mayor and
six (6) Councilmembers, shall be the only elected officers of the City, and they shall be
elected and hold office and be compensated as provided herein.

Terms -- The Mayor and Councilmembers shall be elected by the qualified voters of the
entire City for a term of three (3) years, or until a successor has been duly elected and
qualified, but each Councilmember shall be elected to and occupy an at-large, non-
geographical seat on the Council, such seats being numbered 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6,
respectively. The seats of the Councilmembers shall be designated on the official ballot as
Councilmember Seats 1, 2, 3,4, 5 and 6.

Transition Provisions - To establish staggered terms for the Mayor and Councilmembers,
the following transition provisions shall be applied: '

(a) Beginning with the May 2009 election, the Mayor and Councilmember for Seat
3 will be elected for a three (3) year term. Councilmember for Seat 1 and Seat 2
will be elected for a two (2) year term.

(b) In May 2010, Councilmember for Seat 5 and Seat 6 will be elected for a three
(3) year term. Councilmember for Seat 4 will be elected for a two (2) year
term.

(c) In May 2011, Councilmember for Seat 1 and Seat 2 will be elected for a three
(3) year term.

(d) In May 2012, the Mayor and Councilmember for Seat 3 and Seat 4 will be
elected for a three (3) year term.

(e) In May 2013, Councilmember for Seat 5 and Seat 6 will be elected for a three
year term.

Current Terms — The current terms of Councilmembers in office when this Section takes
effect shall not be shortened by the transition provision in (3) above.

Pattern — Beginning in 2012, a pattern of electing the Mayor and a number of
Councilmembers on a *3-2-2” annual rotation basis shall be in effect and continue
thereafter. '

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter
Approved May 15, 2008

7



SECTION 3.03 Candidacy of the Mayor and Councilmembers

M

2)

3)

Qualification -- No person shall be a candidate for the office-of Mayor or Councilmember
unless such candidate is a qualified voter of the City and shall have resided in the City for
not less than one (1) year preceding the day of election and should not be in arrears in the
payment of any City taxes.

Declaration -- Candidates of the office of Mayor or Councilmember may have their names
printed upon the official ballot being nominated for such office by written application. The
order of the names of the candidates on the ballot shall be determined by lot in a public
drawing to be held under the supervision of the City Secretary in accordance with the
Texas Election Code.

Filing -- An application stating a declaration of candidacy shall be filed with the City
Secretary or a duly appointed designee, who shall affix the date and time stamp on the
ballot application, during regular office hours not earlier than the 75th day before the day
of the election as provided by State law. The candidate’s ballot application must be filed
not later than 5 p.m. on the date provided in accordance with State law. The City Hall
shall not remain open to the general public after such time to accept ballot applications.

SECTION 3.04 Election

(1)

2

3)

All candidates running for Mayor or Councilmember seat, respectively, shall be elected by
a majority vote of all votes cast in the regular municipal election for the office which the
candidate seeks election.

In the event that a candidate does not receive a majority of votes, it shall be the duty of the
City Council to order a runoff election for every Councilmember seat or Mayor to which no
one was elected. Such runoff election shall be held in accordance with State law.

Should any person who was a candidate at the regular municipal election and who is
entitled to become a candidate at the runoff election die, refuse or otherwise be unable to
appear on the runoff election ballot, the candidate for such office standing next highest in
the computation of vote for that office shall succeed to the rights of such candidate who
failed to appear on the ballot at said runoff election. This method for selecting alternate
runoff candidates shall be employed until there are two (2) candidates for each office in
each runoff election and should there be only one candidate for office after the conclusion
of this process, that candidate shall be declared the winner. However, if at the date of the
election, there is no runoff candidate left from those who sought to be elected to that seat or
Mayor in the regular election, the City Council shall declare no one elected to such seat or
Mayor and shall call a Special Election on such date provided by State law to elect a person
to such seat or Mayor; and said Special Election shall be conducted pursuant to State law
prescribing special elections to fill vacancies in municipal offices.

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter
Approved May 15, 2008

8



SECTION 3.05  Judge of Election

(1) The City Council shall be the judge of the qualifications of its own members and of the
Mayor, subject to review of the courts in case of an election contest. The City Council
shall, in accordance with State law, canvass the returns for any election and declare the
results of such election. Should a runoff election be necessary, such election shall be held
in accordance with the Texas Election Code and other applicable statutes.

(2) In the event of a tie vote between candidates, the respective candidates so tied may agree to
cast lots to determine who shall be the duly elected officer. In the event such tied
candidates do not agree to determine the results of the election by casting lots, a run-off
election shall be called and the respective candidates so tied shall cast lots to determine the
order their names shall appear on the ballot for such run-off elections. The candidate
receiving the highest number of votes of the entire City cast at said run-off election shall be
elected to such office.

SECTION 3.06 Date and Conduct of Election

The regular municipal election of the City Council shall be held on the uniform election day in
May, in accordance with this Charter, and the same shall be conducted and the results canvassed
and announced in accordance with the laws of the State regulating all municipal elections and in
accordance with the ordinances adopted by the City Council for the conduct of elections.

SECTION 3.07  Qualifying of Officers

The Mayor, Councilmembers, and other officers appointed under this Charter shall qualify by
taking the oath prescribed by the Texas Constitution and by executing such bond as may be
required under the provisions of this Charter and the ordinances and resolutions of the City at the
first meeting following the canvass.

SECTION 3.08 Candidates Holding Special Positions with the City

(1) In the event any Councilmember shall become a candidate for office of Mayor or in the
event the Mayor or any Councilmember shall become a candidate for election to any seat
on the City Council other than the office the Mayor or Councilmember is presently holding,
such candidate shall tender and attach to their ballot application a resignation from said
office, which shall be effective as of the date of such election without any further act of
acceptance.

(2) In the event any member of any body appointed by the City Council shall become a
candidate for the office of Mayor or Councilmember, such position on such board shall be
considered vacated upon election and qualification.

3) Any City employee who shall become a candidate for the office of Mayor or
Councilmember shall immediately forfeit such position of employment and such ballot

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter
Approved May 15, 2008

9



application shall be accompanied by said employee's written resignation, the acceptance of
which shall require no further act.

SECTION 3.09 City Council Vacancies and Attendance

(D

(2)

€))

“4)

In the event of a vacancy existing in the office of Mayor or any Councilmember from any
cause whatsoever, the vacancy or vacancies occurring shall be filled by the qualified voters
at an election within one hundred twenty (120) days after such occurs, as prescribed by
State law. If the term of office or offices is or are unexpired, the number of members
elected at such election shall serve in such office or offices for the remainder of the
unexpired term of such office or offices following the date of the election.

Any member of the City Council remaining absent for three (3) consecutive regular
meetings of the City Council, without first having obtained a leave of absence through City
Council action at a regular meeting, such office may be declared vacated by a majority vote
of all the remaining members of the City Council. Any member of the City Council
remaining absent for six (6) consecutive regular meetings of the City Council shall be
deemed to have forfeited such office through City Council action.

Any person elected to serve on the City Council, who, subsequent to taking office is
convicted of a felony or a crime of moral turpitude shall automatically be deemed to have
forfeited such office.

In case of disaster when a legal quorum of the City Council cannot be assembled due to
multiple deaths or injuries, the surviving members of the City Council, or the highest
surviving City official if no elected official remains, must, within twenty-four (24) hours
of such disaster, or as soon as practicable, take such action as to ensure the basic health,
safety and welfare of the citizens and undertake whatever action is necessary under the
laws of the State to call for a special election. Until such election is held and the City
Council qualified, the remaining members or highest ranking officer, if no elected official
remains, shall only undertake those actions necessary to protect the basic health, safety
and welfare of the citizens which such action may be subsequently ratified by the full
City Council.

SECTION 3.10 Mayor Pro-Tem

(1)

)

3

At the first regular meeting after each regular election of the city council members and/or
mayor, City Council shall select from among the Councilmembers a Mayor Pro-Tem to
serve at the pleasure of the City Council.

The Mayor Pro-Tem shall act as Mayor during the disability or absence of the Mayor, and
in this capacity shall have the rights conferred upon the Mayor.

During the disability or absence of the Mayor and the Mayor Pro-Tem, any
Councilmember may be appointed by the remaining five (5) Council members to act as
Mayor and in this capacity shall have the rights conferred upon the Mayor.

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter
Approved May 15, 2008

10



SECTION 3.11 Compensation for the Mayor and Councilmembers

ey

@

The Mayor and Councilmembers may by ordinance establish reasonable compensation,
but no increase in such compensation shall take effect until commencement of the terms
of mayor and/or councilmember elected at the next regular election.

The City Council shall establish by ordinance the standards and policies concerning
reimbursement of reasonable expenses incurred by the Mayor and Councilmembers in the
performance of their official duties.

SECTION 3.12  Duties of Mayor

(D

(2)

3)

“
(3)

The Mayor shall preside at all meetings of the City Council and shall have full voting
rights.

The Mayor shall perform such other duties consistent with the office as may be imposed by
this Charter or the ordinances and resolutions of the City.

The Mayor shall sign all ordinances, resolutions, capital improvement contracts,
conveyances made or entered into by the City, all bonds issued under the provisions of this
Charter, and such other documents as authorized by the City Council.

The Mayor shall be recognized as the official head of the City for all ceremonial purposes.

The Mayor shall be recognized by the governor for the purpose of enforcing martial law.
In time of danger or emergency, the Mayor may, in accordance with State law and with the
consent of the Councilmembers, take command of the police and govern the City by
proclamation and maintain order and enforce all laws.

SECTION 3.13  Duties of City Council

Except as otherwise provided by this Charter, all powers of the City and the determination of all
matters of policy shall be vested in the City Council. Without limitation of the foregoing powers of
the City Council, the City Council shall have the power to:

(D)
)
3)
(4)

&)

Fix the compensation of all appointive officers and employees.

Adopt the budget of the City.

Authorize the issuance of bonds by a bond ordinance.

By majority vote, inquire into the conduct of any office, department or agency of the City
and make investigations as to municipal affairs. Nothing contained herein shall be

construed to prohibit an inquiry into an operational issue.

Enact resolutions and ordinances.

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter
Approved May 185, 2008

11



(6)

(N

8)

The City Council shall adopt a periodic fiscal reporting policy, with such policy not
providing for less than quarterly reporting.

To appoint members of the planning and zoning commission, the zoning board of
adjustments and other such boards, committees, commissions and directors to corporations
as may be authorized by State law. Any member appointed to such board, committee,
commission or corporation shall have been a resident of the City of Lucas for a minimum
of 6 (six) months at the time of their appointment.

Govern the affairs of the City in conformance with this Charter and the state and federal
constitutions and laws, and to determine by majority vote the best and most appropriate
method and manner of efficiently performing the functions and providing the services of
the City, consistent with the council-city manager form of government; and, except as
provided in this Charter with respect to certain departments that must be maintained in
effect, the City Council may after considering the recommendation of the City Manager,
create, change, merge, or abolish offices, departments or agencies of the City, and may
contract for services by interlocal agreement or otherwise as it deems advisable to improve
the services of the efficiency of government.

SECTION 3.14  Meetings of City Council

(1)

()

3)

The City Council shall hold at least one (1) regular meeting each month and as many
additional meetings as the City Council deems necessary to transact the business of the
City. The City Council shall fix by ordinance the date and time of the regular meetings.

Special meetings of the City Council shall be held at the call of the Mayor or a majority of
the Councilmembers upon provision of public notice in accordance with State law.

All meetings of the City Council, except those authorized by law to be closed to the public,
shall be open to the public.

SECTION 3.15  Quorum of City Council and Minutes of City Council Meetings

(1)

(2)

A majority of the City Council shall constitute a quorum to do business, and, unless
otherwise provided by law, the affirmative vote of a majority of a quorum shall be
necessary to adopt any ordinance or resolution.

Minutes of all proceedings shall be kept, to which any citizen may have access at all
reasonable times and which shall constitute one of the archives of the City. The vote on all
ordinances and resolutions shall be recorded and entered in the minutes; and, every
ordinance or resolution, upon its final passage, shall be recorded in a book kept for that
purpose and shall be authenticated by the signature of the presiding officer. The minutes of
all meetings shall record the attendance of all members of the City Council present and
those absent.

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter
Approved May 15, 2008

12



SECTION 3.16 Ordinances and Resolutions

ey

2)

3)

4

(5)

(6)

(N

(7)

Enactment -- Each proposed ordinance and resolution shall be introduced in written or
printed form. Ordinances or resolutions may be passed at any regular or special meeting
called in accordance with State law.

Captions -- Each ordinance and resolution shall contain a brief caption of the subject matter
of the ordinance or resolution.

Publication -- A descriptive title or caption stating in summary the purpose of the
ordinance and the penalty for violation thereof, of each ordinance imposing a penalty, fine
or forfeiture, shall after passage be published in one issue of the official newspaper of the
City and proof of such publication shall be made by the printer or publisher of such paper
making affidavit before some officer authorized to administer oaths. Such affidavit shall be
filed with the City Secretary and shall be prima facie evidence of such publication and
promulgation of such ordinance so published; said ordinances shall take effect and be in
full force and effect from and after the date of publication, unless otherwise expressly
provided. Ordinances not required to be published shall take effect and be in force from
and after the date of passage thereof unless otherwise provided.

Savings -- All ordinances and resolutions of the City now in existence and not inconsistent
with provisions of this Charter shall remain in full force and effect until altered, amended
or repealed by the City Council.

Pleading -- It shall be sufficient in all judicial proceedings to plead any ordinances of the
City by caption without embodying the entire ordinance in the pleadings, and all pleaded
ordinance(s) or codes shall be admitted as evidence in any suit and shall have the same
force and effect as the original ordinances. Certified copies of the ordinances may also
be used in evidence in lieu of original ordinances.

Codification -- The Code of Ordinances of the City shall be codified and shall be revised at
least annually and kept up-to-date by causing any amendments to be published in the form
of supplemental pages. An official copy of the Code shall be maintained in the office of
the City Secretary for public examination.

Emergency -- The City Council shall have the authority to pass such emergency ordinances
and resolutions as necessary to protect the health, safety and welfare of the City in
accordance with State law.

Miscellaneous -- The City Council may adopt such other procedures that do not conflict
with this Charter or State law.

SECTION 3.17  Official Newspaper

The City Council shall designate by resolution a newspaper of general circulation in the City as the
official newspaper of the City as provided by State law.

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter
Approved May 15, 2008

13



SECTION 3.18 Influence of Appointments

Neither the City Council nor any of its members shall direct or request the appointment of any
person to or such person’s removal from any office under the control of the City Manager. In
regard to administrative and executive duties under the City Manager, the City Council shall deal
solely through the City Manager and neither the City Council nor any of its members thereof shall-
give orders to any subordinate of the City Manager, either publicly or privately. Any knowing
violation of the foregoing provisions of this Charter by any member of the City Council shall
constitute official misconduct and shall authorize the City Council by a vote of a majority of its
membership to expel such offending member from the City Council if found guilty after a public
hearing, and thereby create a vacancy in the seat held by such member.

SECTION 3.19 Public Comment

The opportunity for citizens of the City to provide public comment on any and all subjects
regardless of the agenda shall be provided at each regular meeting. This opportunity shall be
called “Citizens’ Input" and shall begin prior to any vote at a regular meeting of the City Council.
The City Council may provide reasonable regulations to implement this provision.

SECTION 3.20  Code of Ethics

The City Council by ordinance shall establish a Code of Ethics governing the City Council and
all city employees which shall include at least the following: wrongful influence, wrongful
interference, employees’ political activities, penalties, conflict of interest, and acceptance of
gifts.

ARTICLE IV
City Manager

SECTION 4.01 Appointment

The City Council by five (5) affirmative votes shall appoint a City Manager who shall be the chief
executive officer of the City and shall be responsible to the City Council for the proper
administration of the offices of the City, except as otherwise provided by this Charter. The City
Manager shall be chosen by the City Council on the basis of executive and administrative training,
experience and ability. Prior to the 2009 election, four (4) affirmative votes of the City Council are
required to appoint a City Manager.

SECTION 4.02 Compensation
The City Manager shall receive a salary, benefits and compensation as set by the City Council.

SECTION 4.03  Duties

The duties of the City Manager shall include the following:

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter
Approved May 15, 2008

14



(1) Provide that all laws and ordinances of the City are enforced.
(2) Appoint or hire all employees of the City, except as otherwise provided in this Charter.
3) Suspend and remove, at will, employees, except as otherwise provided in this Charter.

4) Provide for the efficient administration and operation of all departments, under the City
Manager’s control including the maintenance of and public information request for all
records thereof, except as otherwise provided in this Charter. -

(5)  Prepare and recommend to the City Council an annual operating budget and capital
improvement program, as provided by this Charter, and administer and execute the
budget as adopted by the City Council.

(6)  Provide supervision and control over all departments and offices that are created by the
City Council and employees appointed by the City Manager, except as otherwise
provided in this Charter.

(7 Attend all meetings of the City Council with the right to take part in the discussion.

(8) Make recommendations to the City Council as the City Manager may deem necessary
and expedient.

) Provide written reports no less than quarterly of the current financial conditions and
future needs of the City to be presented orally at an open meeting of the City Council,
and make such recommendations concerning the affairs of the City, as the City Manager
or the City Council deems desirable or necessary.

(10)  Perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Charter or which may be required
by ordinance or resolution of the City Council.

SECTION 4.04  Absence of City Manager

The City Manager may, by letter filed with the City Secretary, designate a qualified city
employee to exercise the powers and perform the duties of City Manager during the City
Manager’s temporary absence. To perform the duties of the City Manager during the absence or
disability exceeding thirty (30) days, the City Council may by resolution appoint an officer of the
City to perform the duties of the City Manager until the City Manager shall return or such
disability shall cease. In case of absence, disability, or illness exceeding thirty (30) days, where
the duties of the City Manager could not be performed properly, the City Manager’s salary may
be continued at the discretion of the City Council.

SECTION 4.05 Removal

The City Manager shall be removed, with or without cause, by five (5) affirmative votes of the
City Council. Prior to the 2009 election, four (4) affirmative votes of the City Council are required
to remove the City Manager.

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter
Approved May 15, 2008

15



ARTICLE V

City Officers

SECTION 5.01  City Secretary

(1) Appointment -- The City Council shall appoint the City Secretary, by at least five (5)
affirmative votes of the City Council. The City Council shall consider the City Manager’s
recommendations regarding the appointment of the City Secretary. Prior to the 2009
election, four (4) affirmative votes of the City Council are required to appoint the City
Secretary.

(2) Duties -- The City Secretary shall:

(A)

(B)
©

(D)
(E)

(F)

G)
(H)
ity
)

(K)

(L)

Give notice of all official public meetings of the City Council as consistent with this
Charter and State law;

Attend all public meetings and hearings of the City Council;

Keep the minutes of the proceedings of all public meetings and hearings of the City
Council as prescribed by the City Council consistent with applicable law;

Act as custodian of all official records of the City Council;

Hold and maintain the seal of the City and affix this seal to all appropriate
documents;

Authenticate and record all ordinances, resolutions and proclamations of the City
by signature and seal;

Perform other duties as may be required by the City Council;
Shall conduct all municipal elections;
Act as agent for the purposes of serving civil process;

Assist the City Manger with the maintenance and public information request of all
records as directed by the City Council;

Prepare and recommend to the City Council the annual budget for the office and
staff of the City Secretary; and ‘

Work with the City Manager in performing additional duties, as may be necessary,
to assist in carrying out the day to day functions of the City.

3) Compensation - The City Council shall fix the compensation, salary and benefits of the
City Secretary in accordance with the City Secretary's experience, qualifications and
performance.

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter
Approved May 15, 2008

16



4

Removal -- The City Secretary may be removed, with or without cause, by five (5)
affirmative votes of the City Council. Prior to the 2009 election, four (4) affirmative votes
of the City Council are required to remove the City Secretary.

SECTION 5.02 Municipal Judge

ey

(2)

3)

4

Appointment -- The City Council shall appoint by five (5) affirmative votes of the City
Council such Municipal Judges of the Municipal Court as may be necessary, all of whom
shall be competent, duly qualified attorneys licensed and practicing for at least two (2)
years in the State. The Municipal Judge(s) shall be appointed by ordinance of the City
Council and their salary may be fixed by ordinance or resolution. The Municipal
Judge(s) shall be appointed for a term of two (2) years and may be appointed to
additional consecutive terms. Prior to the 2009 election, four (4) affirmative votes of the
City Council are required to appoint the Municipal Judge.

Duties — The Municipal Judge shall:

(A) The Chief Judge of said Municipal Court shall have the power to punish for
contempt to the same extent and under the same circumstances as the Justice of the
Peace may punish for contempt of criminal cases.

(B)  The Municipal Judge shall preside over any associate judge(s) who shall be a
licensed attorney(s) in the State.

Compensation -- The Municipal Judge(s) shall receive compensation as may be
determined by the City Council.

Removal - The Municipal Judge shall be removed, with or without cause, by five (5)
affirmative votes of the City Council. Prior to the 2009 election, four (4) affirmative votes
of the City Council are required to remove the Municipal Judge.

SECTION 5.03  City Attorney

1)

(2)

Appointment -- The City Council shall appoint by five (5) affirmative votes of the City
Council a competent, duly qualified licensed and practicing attorney in the State who
shall serve as the City Attorney. Prior to the 2009 election, four (4) affirmative votes of
the City Council are required to appoint the City Attorney.

Duties — The City Attorney shall:

(A)  Serve as the legal advisor to the City Council;

(B)  Represent the City in litigation and legal proceedings as directed by the City
Council;

(C)  Review and provide opinions as requested by the City Council on contracts, legal
instruments, and ordinances of the City and other City business; and

(D)  Serve as the legal advisor to the officers and their departments, as directed by the
City Council.

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter
Approved May 15, 2008

17



(3) Special Counsel -- The City Council shall have the right to retain special counsel at any
time that it may deem necessary and appropriate to collect delinquent and ad valorem taxes
and liens or for such purposes the City Council deems appropriate.

4) Compensation -- The City Attorney and Special Counsel shall receive compensation as
may be determined by the City Council.

(5) Additional Counsel --The City Attorney, with the approval of the City Council, may select
additional attorneys to act for said City Attorney and the City in its representation and/or
litigation.

(6) . Removal -- The City Attorney may be removed, with or without cause, by five (5)
affirmative votes of the City Council. Prior to the 2009 election, four (4) affirmative votes
of the City Council are required to remove the City Attorney.

SECTION 5.04  Official Bond of City Employees

The directors of all administrative departments whose duties include the handling of monies, and
all employees whose duties include the handling of monies belonging to the City shall, before
entering upon the duties of their office or employment, make bond in a responsible surety
company, acceptable to the City Council for such amount as the City Council may prescribe, the
premium of such bond shall be paid by the City; the City Council may also require any such
surety bond to be further conditioned that the principal thereon will faithfully perform and/or
discharge the duties of said person's office and if there are provisions of State law bearing upon
the functions of said person's office under which the execution of a surety bond is required, it
shall be further conditioned to comply therewith.

ARTICLE VI
Financial

SECTION 6.01  Audit and Examination of City Books and Accounts

At the close of each fiscal year, and at such other times as may be necessary, the City Council
shall call for an independent audit of all accounts of the City by a certified public accountant.
The same firm or certified public accountant shall complete no more than five (5) consecutive
annual audits. The certified public accountant selected shall have no personal interest, directly or
indirectly, in the financial affairs of the City or any of its officers. The written report of audit
will be presented to and discussed by the City Council at a regular meeting. The auditor’s
recommendations will be read into the record of the meeting. Copies of the audit shall be placed
on file as a public record with the City Secretary.

SECTION 6.02 Budget

The fiscal year of the City shall begin on the first day of October and end on the last day of
September of each calendar year. Each year and in sufficient time to provide for all necessary

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter
Approved May 15, 2008

18



hearings, the City Manager shall prepare and submit to the City Council a budget to cover all
proposed expenditures of the City for the succeeding fiscal year. Such budgets shall be prepared
and administered pursuant to the applicable general laws of this state. In the event that the budget
is not enacted prior to October 1%, the preceding fiscal year budget shall be deemed adopted, which
may be amended or supplemented, as the City Council deems appropriate.

SECTION 6.03 Taxes and Taxation

(D) Powers --

(A)  The City Council may levy, assess and collect taxes of any type or character not
prohibited by state law. The maximum ad valorem tax rate shall be as provided in
the Texas Constitution.

(B) The procedure, limitations and requirements for the levy, assessment and
collection of any tax or lien thereof shall be as established by State law; provided
that, if not established by State law, such procedures, limitations and requirements
shall be established by ordinance.

(2) Office of Tax Collection — The finance director shall have the responsibility and duty for
assessing and collecting taxes and the City Manager may appoint an officer in such
department to perform such duties; provided that the City may contract for such services
at the discretion of the City Council.

3) Taxes; When Due and Payable --

(A)  All taxes due to the City shall be payable at the office of the city tax collector, or
at such location or locations as may be designated by the City Council, and may
be paid at any time after the tax rolls for the year have been completed and
approved. Taxes for each year shall be paid before February Ist of the next
succeeding year, and all such taxes not paid prior to that date shall be deemed
delinquent, and shall be subject to penalty and interest as the City Council shall
provide by ordinance. The City Council may provide discounts for the payment of
taxes prior to January 1st in amounts not to exceed those established by the laws
of the State of Texas.

(B)  Failure to levy and assess taxes through omission in preparing the appraisal rolls
shall not relieve the person, firm or corporation so omitted from obligation to pay
such current or past due taxes as shown to be payable by recheck of the rolls and
receipts for the years in question, omitting penalty and interest.

4) Tax Liens, Liabilities and Suits --

(A)  All taxable property located in the City on January 1st of each year shall stand
charged from that date with special lien in favor of the City for taxes due. All
persons purchasing any such property on or after January Ist of any year shall

City of Lucas, Texas '
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter

Approved May 15, 2008
19



take the property subject to the liens provided above. In addition to the liens
herein provided, on January Ist of any year, the owner of property subject to
taxation by the City shall be personally liable for the taxes due for that year.

(B)  The City shall have the power to sue for and recover personal judgment for taxes
without foreclosure, or to foreclose its lien or liens, or to recover both personal
judgment and foreclosure. In any such suit where it appears that the description
of any property in the City appraisal rolls is insufficient to identify such property,
the City shall have the right to plead a good description of the property to be
assessed, to prove the same, and to have its judgment foreclosing the tax lien or
for personal judgment against the owners for such taxes.

SECTION 6.04 Designation of Depository for City Funds

The City Council shall select a depository for City funds in accordance with State law, and to
follow all the terms and provisions of State law.

ARTICLE VII
Bonds, Warrants and Other Evidence of Indebtedness

SECTION 7.01  Authority to Issue

The City shall have the right and power to borrow money for public purposes by whatever method
it may deem to be in the public interest. The City shall have the right and power to issue tax
bonds, revenue bonds, and any other evidences of indebtedness for permanent public
improvements or for any other public purpose not prohibited by law or this Charter and to issue
refunding bonds to refund outstanding evidences of indebtedness previously issued. All such
bonds or other evidences of indebtedness shall be issued in conformity with the laws of the State
applicable at the time of issuance of such obligations.

SECTION 7.02 Manner of Issuance

Bonds and warrants of the City shall be issued as provided by the General Laws of Texas
applicable to cities and towns.

ARTICLE VIII
Recall

SECTION 8.01 Procedure

The Mayor or any Councilmember may be removed from office in the following manner:

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter
Approved May 15, 2008

20



ey

)

3)

)

Any qualified voter of the City may make and file with the City Secretary an affidavit
containing the name of any member of the City Council whose removal is sought, which
said affidavit shall distinctly and specifically state the ground or grounds upon which
removal is predicated. The City Attorney shall review the affidavit for legal sufficiency
and determine the validity of the allegations.

The City Secretary shall deliver a copy of such affidavit to the party so charged and also to
the other members of the City Council. The City Secretary shall then place the matter on
the agenda of the next regular City Council meeting for the purpose of giving the affiant an
opportunity to present such charges to the City Council and to give the Mayor or
Councilmember so charged an opportunity to answer such charge or charges. Such matter
may be considered by the City Council in an executive session which is closed to the
public, unless such officer requests a public hearing. If, after such meeting, such officer
has not tendered such resignation or such affiant has not withdrawn such charges, the City
Secretary shall deliver to the affiant making such charges, copies of petition blanks for
demanding such removal, printed on forms which shall be kept on hand. Such blanks shall
be issued by the City Secretary with the City Secretary's signature thereto attached, and
they shall be dated and addressed to the City Council, indicate the person to whom issued,
state the name of the member whose removal is sought, and such petition must distinctly
and specifically point out the ground or grounds upon which such petition for removal is
predicated, and, if there be more than one ground, such as for incompetency, misconduct or
malfeasance in office, shall specifically state each ground with certainty, as was required in
the initial affidavit, so as to give the officer sought to be removed and those signing the
petition, notice of the matters and things with which such officer is charged. A copy of the
petition shall be recorded in a record book for that purpose to be kept in the office of the
City Secretary.

For a recall petition to be effective, the petition must be returned and filed with the City
Secretary within thirty (30) days after its issuance. Such petition must bear the signatures
of qualified voters of the City equal in number to at least fifty-one percent (51%) of the
total number of voters casting votes for such office at the last regular election or the
signatures of two hundred fifty (250) qualified voters of the City, whichever is the greatest.

Signatures to a recall petition need not be appended to one paper, but to each such petition
paper there shall be attached an affidavit of the circulator thereof, stating that each
signature thereto was made in the circulator's presence and is the genuine signature of the
person whose name it purports to be. Each signer of a recall petition shall sign in ink or
indelible pencil and shall place after such signature, said name printed, the date when said
signature was made, signer's residence by street and number, or other description to
identify signer's place of residence, and if available, signer's voter registration certificate
number. Inclusion of the voter registration number is not required and may be placed on
the petition by the signer or added to the petition by the person circulating the petition. It
shall serve only as an aid to assist the City Secretary in the task of determining whether or
not the signer is a qualified voter. Provided, however, nothing in regard to the inclusion of
such registration number shall affect the validity of the petition including, but not limited
to, errors in regard to the number supplied or its total omission. Recall petition papers

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter
Approved May 15, 2008

21



&)

(©6)

(7)

(8

provided by the City Secretary shall be in form that substantially complies with the form in
Appendix A.

All papers and affidavits comprising a recall petition shall be assembled and filed with the
City Secretary as one instrument, with a notarized statement attached thereto giving the
names and addresses of three (3) qualified voters, who as a committee of the petitioners,
shall be officially regarded as filing the petition. Within twenty (20) business days of the
date of filing a recall petition, the City Secretary shall determine the sufficiency thereof and
attach thereto a certificate showing the result of the examination. If the City Secretary shall
certify that the petition is insufficient, the City Secretary shall set forth in the certificate the
particulars in which it is defective and shall within three (3) business days notify the
committee of petitioners of such finding.

A recall petition may be amended at any time within twenty (20) business days after the
making of the certificate of insufficiency by the City Secretary by filing a supplementary
petition upon additional papers issued, signed and filed as provided herein for an original
petition. The City Secretary shall within five (5) business days after such amendment is
filed, make examination of the amended petition and, if the City Secretary certificate shall
show the petition still to be insufficient, the City Secretary shall file the petition in the
office of the City Secretary and notify the committee of petitioners of such findings. The
finding of insufficiency of a recall petition shall not prejudice the filing of a new petition
for the same purpose.

If a recall petition, or amended petition shall be certified by the City Secretary to be
sufficient, the City Secretary shall within three (3) business days submit it to the City
Council with the City Secretary certificate to that effect and shall notify the member whose
removal is sought on such action. The officer whose removal is sought may, within five
(5) days after such recall petition has been presented to the City Council, request that a
public hearing be held to permit the officer whose removal is sought to present facts
pertinent to the charges specified in the recall petition. In this event, the City Council shall
order such public hearing to be held, not less than five (5) nor more than fifteen (15)
business days after receiving such request for public hearing. If the officer whose removal
is sought does not resign within five (5) business days after such public hearing, or if no
public hearing is requested, within five (5) business days after the deadline for requesting
such public hearing, the City Council shall thereupon order and fix the date for holding a
recall election which shall be held at the next date authorized for City elections by State
Jaw, but not less than forty (40) days after the date of said public hearing, if requested, or if
a public hearing has not been requested, not less than forty (40) days after the deadline for
requesting such public hearing.

The question of recalling any number of members of the City Council may be submitted at
the same election, but as to each member whose removal is sought a separate affidavit and
a separate petition shall be filed and there shall be an entirely separate ballot. Candidates to
succeed any members of the City Council whose removal is sought shall be placed in
nomination in compliance with this Charter.

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter
Approved May 15, 2008

22



©)

(10)

(11)

(12)

The ballot to be used in a recall election shall submit the proposition in substantial
compliance with the form in Appendix B. Except as provided in this section, ballots used
in recall elections shall comply with the provisions of this Charter regarding ballots for
regular municipal elections.

If a majority of the votes cast on the question of recalling the Mayor or a Councilmember
be against recall, such Mayor or Councilmember shall continue in office for the
remainder of the unexpired term, but subject to recall as before. If a majority of such
votes be for recall of the officer on the ballot, such officer shall, regardless of any
technical defect in the recall petition, be deemed removed from office. When the Mayor
or a Councilmember is removed from office by recall, the candidate to succeed such
officer who receives the highest vote shall be declared elected to fill the unexpired term.

If a Mayor or Councilmember in regard to whom sufficient recall petition is submitted shall
resign, the seat shall be declared vacant by the City Council and shall be filled by the
qualified voters at an election called for the next available uniform election date prescribed
by State law, as amended. If the term of office or offices is or are unexpired, the member
or members elected at such election shall serve in such office or offices for the remainder
of the unexpired term of such office or offices following the date of the election. '

No recall shall be filed against the Mayor or a Councilmember within three (3) months
after such Mayor or Councilmember takes office. In the case of a Mayor or
Councilmember subjected to a recall petition and not removed thereby no recall shall be
filed against the Mayor or Councilmember until at least six (6) months after the recall
election. In the case of a Mayor or Councilmember subjected to an ineffective recall
petition that is not returned to the City Secretary within thirty (30) days after its issuance no
recall shall be filed against the Mayor or Councilmember until at least six (6) months after
the expiration of the thirty (30) days.

ARTICLE IX

Legislation by Initiative and Referendum

SECTION 9.01  Initiative

(D)

Qualified voters of the City shall, on at least two (2) separate regular meetings of the City
Council within a sixty (60) day period, request adoption of an ordinance (except one
appropriating money, levying a tax, issuing bonds, or zoning). In the event the City
Council fails to enact such an ordinance, such voters may submit a petition to the City
Council which, after approval as to legal form by the City Attorney, requests that the
ordinance be passed by the City Council, or, if not passed, it be submitted to a vote of the
qualified voters of the City. Said petition must be signed by qualified voters of the City
equal in number to twenty percent (20%) of the number of votes cast at the last regular
municipal election, or 250, whichever is greater, and each copy of the petition shall have
attached to it a copy of the proposed ordinance.

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter
Approved May 15, 2008

23



(A)  The petition must state the residence of each signer and bear the oath of one of the
Petitioners that each signature thereon is the genuine signature of each person
whose name it purports to be subscribed thereon.

(B)  The petition shall be filed with the City Secretary and within twenty (20) business
days after such filing the City Secretary shall check the signatures on the petition
against the county voter registration lists and attach thereto the City Secretary
certificate showing the results of such examination.

) Any person who has filed an insufficient petition shall be notified within three (3) business
days upon discovery of such insufficiency and may present additional signatures within ten
(10) business days after such notice or may file a new petition at any time.

3) Within twenty (20) business days after the City Secretary finds such a petition to be
sufficient, the City Council shall either pass the ordinance as submitted or order an election
to submit the proposed ordinance to a vote of the qualified voters of the City who shall vote
on the question: "For the Ordinance” or "Against the Ordinance.” If a majority of the
qualified voters at such election vote for the ordinance, it shall thereupon be an ordinance
of the City.

SECTION 9.02 Referendum

Qualified voters of the City may require that any ordinance, with the exception of ordinances
appropriating money or levying taxes, passed by the Council be submitted to the voters of the
City for approval or disapproval, by submitting a petition for this purpose within thirty (30) days
after final passage of said ordinance, or within thirty (30) days after its publication. The petition
shall be signed in the same manner as recall petitions are signed, as provided in this article, and
shall be verified by oath in the manner and form provided for recall petitions in this article and
shall be submitted to the City Secretary. Immediately upon the filing of such petition, the City
Secretary shall present to the Council. Thereupon the Council shall immediately reconsider such
ordinance and, if the Council does not entirely repeal the same, shall submit it to the popular vote
as provided in this charter. Pending the holding of such election, each ordinance shall be
suspended from taking effect and shall not later take effect unless a majority of the qualified
voters voting thereon at such election shall vote in favor thereof.

SECTION 9.03  Voluntary Submission of Legislation by the City Council

The City Council, upon its own motion and by the affirmative vote of a majority of the full
membership of the City Council, may submit to popular vote at any election for adoption or
rejection any proposed ordinance, or may submit for repeal any existing ordinance, in the same
manner and with the same force and effect as provided in this Article for submission of petition,
and may at its discretion call a special election for this purpose.

SECTION 9.04 Form of Ballots

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter
Approved May 15, 2008

24



The ballots used when voting upon such proposed and referred ordinance, resolution or
measures, shall set forth their nature sufficiently to identify them and shall also set forth upon
separate lines the words:

“For the Ordinance” or
“Against the Ordinance”

SECTION 9.05  Publication of Proposed or Referred Ordinances

Prior to the date early voting shall begin in any election on an initiative or referendum, the City
Secretary shall cause the caption of the particular ordinance to be published in at least one issue of
the official newspaper of the City or a printed copy thereof mailed to each qualified voter of the
City as appears on the tax roll of the City on the 1st day of January of the year the petition was
presented and the City Secretary shall do such other things relative to such election as are required
in general municipal elections or by the order calling said election.

SECTION 9.06  Adoption of Ordinances

If a majority of the qualified voters voting on any proposed ordinance shall vote in favor thereof, it
shall thereupon or at any time fixed therein, become effective as a law or as a mandatory order of
the Council.

SECTION 9.07  Inconsistent Ordinances

If the provisions of two (2) or more proposed ordinances approved at the same election are
inconsistent, the ordinance receiving the highest number of votes shall prevail.

SECTION 9.08  Ordinances Passed by Popular Vote, Repeal or Amendment

No ordinance which may have been passed by the Council upon a petition or adopted by popular
vote under the provisions of this article shall be repealed or amended except by the Council in
response to a referendum petition or by submission as provided by this charter.

SECTION 9.09  Further Regulations by the City Council

The City Council may pass ordinances or resolutions providing other and further regulations for
carrying out the provisions of this Article consistent herewith.

SECTION 9.10  Franchise Ordinances

Nothing contained in this Article shall be construed to be in conflict with any provisions of this
charter pertaining to ordinances granting franchises when valuable rights shall have accrued
thereunder.

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter
Approved May 15, 2008

25



ARTICLE X
Franchises

SECTION 10.01 Ordinance Granting Franchise

No grant to use the public right-of-way or property under ownership of the City shall be granted
for a term of more than twenty (20) years from the date of the grant, renewal or extension of such
franchise unless approved by citizens in accordance with this article. The City Council may, by
a majority vote, seek approval from the voters by submitting all applications exceeding twenty
(20) years to an election in accordance with State law. The prospective franchisee, not the City,
shall fund the cost of said election.

SECTION 10.02 Right of Regulation

In granting, amending, renewing and extending public service and utility franchises, the City
reserves unto itself all the usual and customary rights, including, but not limited to, the following
rights:

(1) To repeal the franchise by ordinance for failure to begin construction or operation within
the time prescribed, or for failure to comply with terms of the franchise;

(2) To require all extensions of service within the City limits to become part of the aggregate
property of the service and operate subject to all obligations and reserved rights contained
in this Charter. Any such extension is considered part of the original grant and
terminable at the same time and under the same conditions as the original grant;

3) To require expansion and extension of facilities and services and to require maintenance
of existing facilities to provide adequate service at the highest level of efficiency and
effectiveness;

4) To require reasonable standards of service and quality of product and prevent rate
discrimination;

4) To impose reasonable regulations and restrictions to insure the safety and welfare of the
public;

(6) To examine and audit accounts and records and to require annual reports on local
operations of the public service or utility;

(7)  To require the franchisee to restore, at franchisee's expense, all public or private property
to a condition as good as or better than before disturbed by the franchisee for
construction, repair or removal;

City of Lucas, Texas

Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter

Approved May 15, 2008
26



(8)

©)

To require the franchisee to furnish to the City, from time to time within a reasonable
time following request of the City, at franchisee's expense a general map outlining
current location, character, size, length, depth, height and terminal of all facilities over
and under property within the City and its extraterritorial jurisdiction; and

To require compensation, rent or franchise fees to be paid to the City as may be permitted
by the laws of the State.

SECTION 10.03 Regulation of Rates

(1

(2)

(3)

“4)

The City Council has the power to fix and regulate the rates and charges of all utilities
and public services, consistent with State law.

Upon receiving written request from a utility or public service requesting a change in
rates, or upon a recommendation from the City that rates for services provided by or
owned by the City be changed, the City Council shall call a public hearing for
consideration of the change.

The City, public service or utility must show the necessity for the change by any evidence
required by the City Council, including but not limited to, the following:

(A)  Cost of its investment for service to the City;

(B)  Amount and character of expenses and revenues connected with rendering the
service;

(C)  Copies of any reports or returns filed with any state or federal regulatory agency
within the last three (3) years; or

(D)  Demonstration that the return on investment, if any, is within the state and federal
limitations.

If not satisfied with the sufficiency of evidence, the City Council may hire rate
consultants, auditors and attorneys to investigate and, if necessary, litigate requests for
rate changes, the expense of which shall be reimbursed to the City by the franchisee.

SECTION 10.04 Transfer of Franchise

No public service or utility franchise is transferable, except with the approval of the City
Council. However, the franchisee real or personal property may pledge franchise assets as
security for a valid debt or mortgage.

SECTION 10.05 Franchise Value Not to be Allowed

Franchises granted by the City are of no value in fixing rates and charges for public services or
utilities within the City and in determining just compensation to be paid by the City for property
which the City may acquire by condemnation or otherwise.

City of Lucas, Texas :
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter
Approved May 15, 2008

27



ARTICLE XI
Legal Provisions

SECTION 11.01 Notice of Claim

The City shall not be held liable on account of any claim for the death of any person or injuries
to any person or damage to any property unless the person making such complaint or claiming
such damages shall, within ninety (90) days after the time at which it is claimed such damages
were inflicted upon such person or property, file with the City a written statement, under oath,
stating the nature and character of such damages or injuries, the extent of the same, the place
where same happened, the circumstances under which the same happened and the condition
causing same, with a detailed statement of each item of damages and the amount thereof, giving
a list of any witnesses known by affiant to have seen the accident.

SECTION 11.02 Service of Process Against the City

All legal process against the City shall be served upon the City Secretary.

SECTION 11.03 Nepotism

No person within the second degree by affinity or within the third degree by consanguinity to a
Councilmembers or the City Manager shall be employed by or contracted with the City. This

shall not apply to the following:

(D Any person employed by the City prior to the person related in the above degree filing to
run for elective office or being nominated for an appointment; or

(2) Any person who is a seasonal employee or intern of the City.

SECTION 11.04 Construction of Terms

The construction of the provisions of this Charter shall comply with State law as amended.
SECTION 11.05 Charter Deemed Public Act

This Charter must be deemed a public act and judicial notice shall be taken thereof in all courts.

SECTION 11.06 Severability of Portions of Charter

If any provision of this Charter violates the Constitution of the United States, the Texas
Constitution or any statues of the State, or if any court holds such provisions for naught for any
reason, the remaining provisions shall not be affected thereby and shall continue in effect.

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter
Approved May 15, 2008

28



ARTICLE XII

Adoption of Charter

SECTION 12.01 Procedure

ey

)

3)

This Charter shall be submitted to the qualified voters of the City for adoption or rejection
on May 10, 2008, at which election, if a majority of the qualified voters voting in such
election shall vote in favor of the adoption of this Charter, it shall then immediately become
the governing law of the City until amended or repealed.

It being impractical to submit this Charter by sections, it is hereby prescribed that the
form of ballot to be used in such election shall be as follows, to-wit:

FOR THE ADOPTION OF THE CHARTER
AGAINST THE ADOPTION OF THE CHARTER

The present City Council of the City shall call an election in accordance with the provisions
of the general laws of the State governing such elections, and the same shall be conducted
and the returns made and results declared as provided by the laws of the State governing
municipal elections, and in case a majority of the votes cast at such election shall be in
favor of the adoption of such Charter, then an official order shall be entered upon the
records of said City by the City Council of Lucas declaring the same adopted, and the City
Secretary shall record at length upon the records of the City. in a separate book to be kept
in the City Secretary office for such purpose, such Charter as adopted, and such City
Secretary shall furnish to the Mayor a copy of the Charter which copy of the Charter shall
be forwarded by the Mayor as soon as practicable, to the Secretary of State under the seal
of the City together with a certificate showing the approval of the qualified voters of such
Charter.

SECTION 12.02 Amendment of Charter

Amendments to this Charter may be framed and submitted to the qualified voters of the City as
provided by the Texas Constitution and the laws of the State as presently enacted or hereafter
amended; but no more often than once every two (2) years, as provided by the laws of the State.

SECTION 12.03 Council Review of Charter

The City Council shall review the Charter at least once every five (5) years to determine whether
any amendments are necessary.

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter
Approved May 15, 2008

29



Appendix "A" RECALL PETIT

ION

We, the undersigned qualified voters of the City of Lucas, Texas, hereby demand that the
question of removing from the City Council be
submitted to a vote of the qualified voters of the City of Lucas based upon the following grounds:

, * VOTER
NAME REGISTRATION
SIGNATURE PRINTED ADDRESS DATE NUMBER

* Voter Registration Number is not required, may be placed on or added to the petition by the
signer or person circulating the petition and neither its omission nor any error in regard thereto
shall affect the validity of its petition.

STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared
who, after being duly sworn, deposes and says that he/she is the circulator of the foregoing petition

paper and that the signatures appended thereto were made in his/her presence and are genuine
signatures of the persons whose names they purport to be.

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME, this the day of ,

2008,

Notary Public in and for
County, Texas

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter
Approved May 15, 2008

30



Appendix "B" BALLOT

Ballots used at recall election shall conform to the following requirements:

1. With respect to each person whose removal is sought, the question shall be
submitted:
“Shall be removed from the Office of

by recall?”

2. Immediately below each such question there shall be printed the following
words, one above the other, in order indicated:

“YeS”

“NO”

City of Lucas, Texas
Ordinance # 2008-05-00612 Canvass of Election for Home Rule Charter

Approved May 15, 2008
31



Appendix "C" SIGNATURES

(Original signatures from the members of the FHome Rule Charter Commission)

N

Commissioner

Comimissioner

Rdow

Com’mﬁs\iom

Buon ] Cdum(c

Commissioner

Commissioner

o

Comﬂnssmner

Cmﬁssioner
/

Commissioner

Y
/’///;/ Ny

Commlssm‘ner

Commissioner

o

Commlssmu/er

Commissioner

)

Cé61 nimissioner/




City of Lucas ltem No. 11

City Council Agenda Request
MN January 3, 2019

Requester: Finance Director Liz Exum
City Manager Joni Clarke

Agenda Item Request

Consider the timeframe to be used for ballot language in the May 4, 2019 special election related
to the continuation of the Lucas Fire Control, Prevention, and EMS District, and sales tax
dedicated to the Lucas Fire Control, Prevention, and EMS District.

Background Information

In May of 2014, the Lucas Fire Control, Prevention, and EMS District was created that is
dedicated to fire safety and emergency medical services programs and also adopted a local sales
and use tax at a rate of one-half of one percent to be used towards the District.

This Lucas Fire Control, Prevention, and EMS District will dissolve by September 30, 2019
unless the City holds a continuation referendum on the special election ballot in the May 4, 2019
City election.

Per Chapter 344.251(g) of the Local Government Code, the City can choose a time limit to
continue the District and its sales tax for 5, 10, 15 or 20 years. If no time limit is specified, the
district will be continued for five years by default.

Attachments/Supporting Documentation

NA

Budget/Financial Impact

NA

Recommendation

City staff recommends continuing the District and sales tax allocation for a 20 year time period.

Motion

I make a motion to include years as the timeframe used for ballot language in the May
4, 2019 special election related to the continuation of the Lucas Fire Control, Prevention, and
EMS District and the sales tax dedicated to the Lucas Fire Control, Prevention, and EMS
District.



	00 - 01-03-2019 agenda
	AGENDA
	City of Lucas
	City Council Meeting
	January 3, 2019
	7:00 PM
	City Hall – Council Chambers
	665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas
	Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Lucas City Council will be held on Thursday, January 3, 2019 at 7:00 pm at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002-7651 at which time the following agenda will be discussed.  As authorize...
	Call to Order
	Citizen Input
	Community Interest
	Consent Agenda
	Regular Agenda
	Executive Session Agenda
	Regular Agenda (Continued)
	Certification

	01 - Citizen Input
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	02 - Community Interest
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	03 - Consent Agenda cs
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	03a - 12-06-2018 cc minutes
	City of Lucas
	City Council Meeting
	December 6, 2018
	7:00 P.M.
	City Hall - 665 Country Club Road – Lucas Texas
	MINUTES
	Regular Agenda

	04 - technology interviews and appointments
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	05 - Executive Session
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	06 - reconvene from Executive Session cs
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	07 - Roadway Maintenance cs
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	08 - CIP Roadway Projects cs
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	08a - Tax Rate Impact study
	08b - Thoroughfare Plan
	09 - Exercise loop cs
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	09a - Exercise loop excerpts
	09b - 10_25_17Trails Alternatives equest and multi
	09c - Park Loop
	Slide Number 1

	10 -Charter Review
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	10a - Home Rule Charter passed by May 2008
	11 - Fire District timeframe for election
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion


